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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of Inter RAD Lieluva AB

Report on the Audit of the Company's and Group’s Financial Statements

Opinlon

We have audiled the accompanying separate financial statements of AB INTFR RAD Lietuva, a public limiled liabifity
company registered in the Republic of | ithuania (hereinafter the Company), and the consolidated financial
statements of AB INTER RAG Lietuva and its subsidiaries (hereinafler the Group), whici comprise the statements of
financial position-as of 31 December 2019, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
Hows for the year then ended, and notes to the tinancial statements, including a summary of significant accounling
palicies.

In qur opinion, the accompanying Company’s and consolidated financial slalements presont fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of lhe Company and the Group as al 31 December 2019 and their financial
performance and their cash flows for Lthe year then ended in accordance with Inlernational financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducled our audit in accordance with Inlernalional Standards on Auditing (1545 and Rogulation (FU) Mo
537/2014 of the buropean Parllament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on specific requiremants regarding
statutory audit of public-interesl enlities (regulation (FL) No 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the
Council). Our responsibifities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsihilities for the
audit of the financial stalements section of our report, We are independent of the Company/Group in accordance
with the International Code of Fthics for Professional Accountants dincluding International Independence
standards) {IE5BA Code) together with the requirements of the Law on Audit of the Republic of Lithuania that are
retevant to the audil in the Republic of Lithuania, and we have fulfilled our other elhical responsibilitios in
accordance with these requirements and Lhe IESBA Code. We helieve thal Lhe audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and apprapriate to provide a basis for our opinian,

Key audit matters

Key audil matters are those matlers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audil of the
financial stalements of the current period, These matters were addressed in the contaxt of our audit of Lhe financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on those
matters.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Audilor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation lo these matters. Accordingly, our audil included the
performance of procedures designed to respond Lo our assessment of the risks of material misslaternent of the
financial statements. The results of our audil procedures, Including the procedures performed to address the matter
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.
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Key audil matter

Impairment assessment of goodwill and licenses

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Goodwill and licenses are accounted at cosl fess  Qur audit procedures included, among others, the following:

accumulated impairment (goodwill) and  less -
accumulated  amortization  and  impairment
(licenses) and amount to FUR 1,923 thousand in
the statement of financial position of the Group as

of 31 Decembor 2019 {(Mote 4) The Group -
porformed an impairment test of Lhese assels
brased on the value in use estimalion as disclosed

in MNote 4 lo lhe accompanying financial
slalements and as a resull no mpairmenl was -
identified. The annual impairmenl test was
significant  to  owr  audit as it involves
management's  judgment in making the -
assumptions related to cash flows forecasts, as
well as the discount rate, used in the value in use
estimations as disclosed in Note 4. Furthermore,

the goodwill and licenses represent approximately

3% of the total assets of the Group as of 31
December 2019,

Accounting for trading transactions in derivative
instruments

As disclosed in Mote 20 to the financial
statements, the Group had materially increased
the volume of trading transaclions in electricily
commedities instruments thal are accounted as
derivative instruments for trading under IFRS 2
and had a tatal net gain of CUR 4,554 thousand
recorded in 2017 on these transactions in the
consolidated profit and loss and EUR 1,556
thousand in the Company's profit and loss. The
instruments still oulstanding as of the date of the
financial position are valued by the management
at fair value (Mote 14).

The matter was sianiflicant to our audit due to
materiality of the volume of such transactions in
the current financial year and consequently
importance of management's assessment of the

accounting principles to be applied under relevant -
IFRS requirements.

Other Information

We have obtained understanding of the process
tincluding assumplions and methods) how management
poerform their assessmenl of goodwill and licences
impairment;

We considered significanl assumplions used by the
management in the estimation of cash flows forecasls,
compared cash flows comprising components to aclual
and planned levels:

We involved valuation specialists to assist us with Lhe
consideration of the discount rate and calculalion
model used by the management in the impairmenl test;
We tested the sensitivity in the available headroom of
lhe cash generating unit (CGLD considering iF &
reasonably expected change in the assumptions (as
disclosed in Note 4) could cause the carrying amount to
excead ils recoverable amount and also assessed the
nistorical accuracy of managemoent's estimates;

Finally, we considered The adequacy of the Group's
cisclosures included in Nole 4 sbout the assumptions
used in the impairment lest and Lhe outcome of the test,
including sensitivily disclosures.

Qur audit procedures included, among others, the following:

We have obtained understanding of the process how
such trading transactions are initiated, processed and
reported, including management’s: valuation process
for the fair value of lhese instruments;

We have opblained an understanding of the relevant
terms of the ransactions and assessod the accounting
principles applied by Lhe managemenl for measurement
and presentation of Lhese lransactions in the financial
statements;

We have lesled lhe management’s valuation of the
instruments oulstanding as of Tlinancial reporting date
by tracing the markel price applied by lhe management
to the external sources and tracing the guantily used in
the management's calculations  to supporting
documents;

Furthermore, we have considered adequacy of the
disclosures jn the financial staterments in this ared.

Olher informalion consists of the information included in the Company's and Group's Annual Report, ather than the

financial statemenls and our auditor's report thereon,

presentation.

Management is responsible for the olher information

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon, excepl as indicated balow,
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In connection with our audit of the financial statemenls, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
daoing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the linancial statements or our
knowledge obtained In the audil or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a malerial misstatement of this other informalion, we are reguired to report
thal fact. We have nothing to report in Ehis regard.

We also have to evaluate, if the financial information included in the Consolidated Annual Heport corresponds to the
financial statements for the same financial year and if the Consolidated Annual Report was prepared in accordance
with the relevant legal requirements. In our opinien, hased on the waork performed in the course of the audit of
tinancial statements, in all malerial respacts:

» The financial information included in the Company's and Group's Annual Report corresponds ta the financial
information included in the financial statements for Lhe year ended 31 December 2019; and

» The Company's and Group's Annual Heporl was prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Law on
Financial Reporting by Undertakings of the Republic of Lithuania and the Law on Consolidated Financial
Reporting by Groups of Undertakings af the Republic of Lithuania.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparalion and fair presentation of the tinancial stalemenls in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Curopean Union, and for such internal contral as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's and the Group's
ahility Lo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company and/or the Group or to
cedgse operations, or has no realistic allernative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s and Lhe Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objeclives are to obtain reasenable assurance aboul whelher Lhe Tinancial statements as a whole are free from
material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Repasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul is nol a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
IS4s will always detect a material misstatement when il exisls. Misstalements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the agyregale, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these linancial statements.,

As part of an audit in accordance with 1545, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skeplicism
throughout the audit, We also:

» [dentify and assess Lhe risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due Lo fraud or error,
design and perform audil procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit cvidence Lhat is sulficient and
appropriale to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misslalemenl resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of inlernal control,

# Obtain an understanding of inlernal conlral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, bul nol Tor the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's and Group's internal control.

» Fyaluale Lhe appropriateness of accounling policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whelher 2 material uncertainty exists related lo events or conditions thal may cast
significant doubt on the Company's and/or the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required lo draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial staterments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obltained up to the date of our audilor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company and/or the Group to cease to continue as a going concermn,
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* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achioves fair
presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audil evidence regarding the financial infarmation of the entities or business activities
within Lthe Group to express an opinion on the corsolidated financial stalements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible Tor our audil opinion,

We communicate wilh those charged with governance regarding, among olher matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audil and signiticant audit findings, including any significanl deficiencies in internal control thal we
icentify during our awdit,

We also provide those charged with governance wilh a statement that we have compiied with relevanl elhical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other mattors thal may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related sateguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine thoso matters Lhal were of
mosl significance in the audil of the financial stalemenls of the current period and are therefore the key audil
mallers. We describe those matbers inour auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure aboul
the matler ar when, in extromely rare circumstances, wodetermine that a maller should net be communicated in
our reporl because the adverse conscguences of doing so would reasonably be expecled to oubtweigh the public
interest benefils of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Other requirements of Lhe auditor's report in accordance wilh Regulation (EUY No 537/20014 af fthe European
Parfiament and of the Council,

Appointmnent and approval of the audilor

Iy accordance with the decision made by the shareholder we have been chosen to carry out the audit-of Company’s
and Group's financial statements the firsl Lime in 2009, Our appointment to carry oul the audit of Company's
financial statements and Group's consolidated [inancial statements In accordance with Lhe decision made by
sharchaolder hias been renewed annually and the period of total uninterrupted engagemaent is 10 years.

Adaptation Lo Lhe audil repert submitted to the audit corminitlec
We confirm Lhal our opinion in the section 'Opinion’ is consislent wilh the additional report which we have submitted
ta the Company, the Group and the Audit Committes.

Neon audit services

We confirm that in light of our knowledge and belief, services provided to the Company and Lhe Group are consistent
wilh the requirements of the law and requlations and do nol comprise non-audit services referred Lo in Article 5013
of the Regulation (ELIY Mo 537/2014 of the buropean Parliamenl and of Lhe Councif,

I hrouahout our.audit engagement period, we have provided bo the Company non-audit services with the total fees
of EUR 9,900,

Ihe partner in charge of the audit resulling in this independent auditor's report is Inga Gudinait,

UAB ERNST & YOUNG BALTIC
Audit company's licence Mo, 001335

MNo. 000366

7 February 2020
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119813, A.Tumeéno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless othorwiso siated)

Statements of financial position

_ Group Company
Az at: As at 31 A=z at 31 As at 31
December December December December

Notes 2019 2018 2019 2018

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assels

Goodwill ral= 716 - -

Operating license 1,207 2,413 - »

Other intangible assels g 21 = .
Taotal intangible assets 4 1,832 3,150 3 -
Property, plant and eguipment

Land 5 - 576 - =

Buildings and structures 2,398 2,562 + -

Office premises 547 G22 547 G622

Machinery and equipment 13,461 14,379 = >

Other property, plant and equipment 45 36 16 16
Total properly, plant and equipment 5 16,451 18,175 563 638
Right-of-use assets 5 1,102 : 412 =
Investment property 2.7 323 323 323 323

in a joint venture and

Viless b R A 1,6 . 79 10827 10,254
Cither non-current financial asscls 7 147 275 38 32
Defarred income tax asset 24 . i 4 1,034
Total non-current assels _19,955 22,002 12,263 12,281
Current assets
Prepayments 7 1,251 3.805 167 3,603
Accounts receivable

Trade receivables B, 26 12,576 11,856 10,216 9,798

Sl - 25 3157 2,525

Contract assets g 218 992 1,120 % =

Other receivables g - 480 - -
Total accounts receivable 13,568 13 461 13,373 12,323
Prepaid income lax Z 67 - -
Other current financial assals 7 1,163 1,270 100 207
Derivative financial instrumenis id 2404 400 1,407 400
Cash and cash equivalenis 10 a7 peo 20,737 22584 19,110
Total current asseis 45,108 39,740 37,631 5;.53343
Total assets _ 65,063 61,742 49,894 47,924

(cont'd an the next page)
The accompanying notes are an integral par of thesc financial statemaents.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126118813, A.Tuméne str. 4, Vilnlus, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts are in EUA thousand unless otherwise slaled)

Statements of financial position (cont'd)

Group Company
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 Asat 3
December December December December

Motes 2019 2018 2019 2018
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 1 5,800 5,800 5,800 5,800
Legal resarves 11 1,011 G482 579 579
Cash flow hedge reserve 14 916 (4.771) 808 (4,813)
Currency translation reserva 23,11 (48) (76) - -
Retained sarnings 29,542 15,524 14,199 11,707
Total equity 29,224 17,459 21,386 13,273
Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
Mon-current bormowings 12 - 3,852 - -
Leasc liabilities i3 890 G513 245 *
Derivative financial instruments 14 - 14 = =
Deferred income tax liability 21 1.501 BS54 176 =
Total non-current liabilities 2,391 5,133 421 -
Current liahilities
Current portion of non-current 3 850 2.300 . _
borrowings 12 ! '
Current porticn of lease liabilities 13 251 38 130 z
Darivative financial instruments 14 243 5,763 255 5,664
Trade payables 15, 26 26,350 25,814 26,163 25,601
Income lax payable 715 1,910 284 1.810
Advances received 13 16 13 10
Other current liabilities 16 2,028 2,303 1,242 1,466
Total current liabilities 33,451 39,150 28,087 34,651
Total equity and liabilities 65,063 61,742 49,894 47,924

The accompanying notes ara an integral pait of these financial stalements.

General Manager Giedrivs BalSionas | ! | o 7 February 2020
Vo
Chisf Accountant Edita Vagoniené Ficeer |V ) 7 Febtuary 2020
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AB INTER BAO LIETUVA, company code 126119813, A.Tumeéno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless othenwise stated)

Statements of comprehensive income

: Group Gompany
Notes 2019 2018 2019 2018
Hevenie lrgm posieacts wilh 5, 317,034 288,268 288,234 240,663
customers 2.18
Cost of sales 18 {292 573) {265,553 (268,555) (220,961)
Gross profil 24,4861 22,716 19,679 19,702
General and administralive expenses 19 (9,298} (7,782) (5,843) {5.524)
Profit from operations 15,163 14,934 13,836 14,178
Income from other activities 5 3 14 14
Finance incomea on 4,667 409 1,837 740
Finance expenses o0 (318) {584) (84) (234)
Share of result of joint venture G = (13) z e
Profil before tax 19,517 14,749 15,603 14,688
Income fax 29 {1.870) (3,295) (1,511) (3,089)
Net profit 17,647 11,454 14,002 11,609
Other comprehensive income to be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods
Met resull on cash flow hedges 14 &,691 (5,684 6,613 (5,712)
Income tax effect 14 {1,004) 850 {992) B57
Eftect of currency exchange 23 11 28 {54) = 2
Total other comprehensive income
to be reclassified to profit or loss 5,715 (4,868) 5,621 {4,855)
in subsequent periods, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for
the year, net of tax 23,362 6,586 19,713 6,754
Basic and diluted eamings per share
(EUR) 22 .88 0.57 - -
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
_General Manager _ Giedrius BalZidnas 144 7 February 2020
| V]
Chiaf Accountant _ Edita Vagoniens Alleee f[ 7 February 2020
|
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126113913, A.Tuméne str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts are in EUA thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statements of changes in equity

Group

Balance as at 31 December
2017

Met profit for the year

Cither comprahensive income,
net of tax

Total comprehensive
income

Transfer to reserves

Dividends declared

Balance as at 31 December
2018

Met profit for the year

Cther comprehansive income,
net of tax

Total comprehensive
Transfer to rescrves
Dividends declared

Balance as at 31 December
2019

Company

Balance az at 31 December 2017

Met profit for the year

Other comprehansive income, nat

of tax

Total comprehensive income

Dividends declarad

Balance as at 31 December 2018

Met profit for tha year

Other comprehensive income, net

of tax

Total comprehensive income

Dividends declared

Balance as at 31 December 2019

Cash flow Currency
Share Legal hedge translation Retained
Motes  capital reserve reserve resarve earnings Total
____ 5800 910 43 (22) 11,242 17,973
. = ;i 11,454 11,454
14
= - (4.814) (54) - {4.868)
- - {4,814} (54) 11,454 6,586
72 - - (72) =
23 - . - - (7,100} (7,100
5,800 982 (4,771) (76} 15,524 17,459
- - - - 17.647 17,647
14
- - 5,687 28 - 5715
- - 5,687 28 17,647 23,362
1 - 29 - - (29) -
23 a X - - (11,600)  {11,600)
5,800 1,011 916 (48) 21,542 29,21
Cash flow
Share Legal hedge Retained
Motes capital reserve reserve earnings Total
5,800 579 42 7,193 13.618
= . - 11,609 11,609
14
2 = (4.855) = (4,855)
- - (4,855) 11,609 6,754
23 = z - (7, 100) (7,100)
5,800 579 (4,813) 11,707 13,273
2 = - 14,092 14,082
14
- 5.621 - 5,621
. - 5,621 14,092 19,713
23 = - - {11,600) {11.600)
5,800 579 BOB 14,199 21,386

Equity altributable to equity holders of the parent

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. |

General Manager

Chief Accountant
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AB INTER RAQ LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2018

{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless olherwise slated)

Statements of cash flows

Cash flows from (to) operating
aclivilies

Met profil

Adjustments for non-cash items:
Income tax expenssas

Depreciation and amortisation
Depraciation of right-of-use assels
Share of net resdlt of joinl venture
Dividend (income)

Interest (income) expenses

Change in fair value of derivatives not
designated as hedging instruments
{(Aeversal of) impairment of investment to
subsidiary

Fair value change of investmeant proparty
Other non-cash items

Changes in working capital:

Decrease (increasa) in prepayments and
ather receivables from subsidiaries and
joint ventura

{Increase} decrease in accounts
receivable and other current assets
{Decrease) increase in trade payables
Income tax (paid)

(Decrease) increase in other current
liakbilities

(Increase) decrease in other non-current
assels

MNet cash flows frem operating
aclivities

Cash flows from (to) investing
aclivities

{Acquisition) of non-current assats
Dividends received

Distribulion from joint venlure

Met cash flows from (o) investing
activities

Group Company
Motes 2019 2018 2019 2018
17,647 11,454 14,052 11,608
21 1,870 3,295 1,511 3,088
4.5 2393 2,410 BG 90
5 245 - 136 -
B - 14 - z
20 - [154) {350)
20 274 394 43 45
24 (729) 123 {32) 129
1 - - (B72) 188
4 (188) - (188)
68 (34) (8) (18)
21,768 17,468 15,004 14,554
3.560 {3,502) 3,438 (4,518)
(2,047) 2,559 (1,952) 2,673
533 15,501 565 15,793
(3,154) (1,244) (3,100) (1,153}
B94 (214) 1,113 (7B2)
128 300 - 39
21,6682 30,168 15,066 26,652
(22) (28) (11) (11)
- - 154 350
a0 - BO -
58 (28) 223 339

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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- AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

= Statements of cash flows (cont'd)
.-.
Group Company
. 2019 208 2019 2018
—
- Cash flows from (to) financing
= activities
Dividands {paid) {11,600) (7,100} {11,600 (7,100)
o Loans repaid {3,300} (7,093) - (3.795)
: Interest (paid) (233) (361) (38) (12)
4 Interest paid for loase (41) - {5) -
‘. Lease (payments) {281) {407 (172) -
Met cash flows (to) financing activities {15,455) (14,594} (11,815) (10,907)
L]
~ Met increase (decrease) in cash and
7 cash equivalents . 6,285 15,546 3474 16,084
=
Cash and cash equivalents at the
w beginning of the year 20,737 5191 19,110 3,026
Cash and cash equivalents at the end
= of the year 27,022 20,737 22,584 12,110
o y
d The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.| j
] .
_ General Manager Giedrius BalGiinas [ 'I i 7 February 2020
L. g
o Chief Accountant Edila Vagonieng AR Lt 7 February 2020
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements
General information

AB INTER RAQ Lietuva {herginafter, “the Company") is a public limited liability company registered in the Republic of
Lithuania. Its registered office is located al:

A Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius
Lithuania

The Gompany was registered on 21 December 2002, On 22 October 2012 the Company changed its legal status from
privale limited liability company to public limited lability due to the listing on the Warsaw stock exchange. Since
18 December 2012 the Company's shares are traded on the Warsaw Stock Exchange on the Main frade list.

The Company's core line of business is supply of electricity. The Company holds the following licenses and
permissions:

1) Alicense No, L1-NET-14 of an independenl electricity supplier enfitling to supply electricily in Lithuania;

2)  Unlimited-term permission No, LE-0020 for electricity export to Russia and Belarus;

) Unlimited-term permission Mo. LI-0030 for electricity import from Russia and Belarus to Lithuania.

The subsidiary SIA INTER BAQ Latvia is included in electricily trading registry in the Republic of Latvia. The subsidiary
QU INTER RAD Eesti holds a termless license No. 7.2-3/12-042 of an independent electricity supplier in Estonia. The
subsidiary Vydmantai wind park, UAB holds a termless permit to produce electricity No. LG - 0238, The subsidiary Sp
z o.0. IRL Polska holds the license for electricity trading which iz offective staring 8 January 2014 and valid until 9
January 2024,

Az al 31 December 2019 and 2018 the shareholders of the Company wera as follows:

31 December 2019 __31 December 2018
Mumber of Interast Nu E‘:Er of Interest
shares held  held il ko held
held
RAD Mordic Oy, company code 1784937-7,
Tammasaarankatu 1, Helsinki, Finland 10,200,000 51% 10,200,000 51%
UAB Scaenl Ballic, company code 300661378,
Jogailos str. 9, Vilnius, Lithuania 5,822 856 29 11% L 822856 29.11%
Other shareholdars 3,977,144 19.89% 3,977,144 19.89%
Total 20,000,000  100% 20,000,000 100%

As of 31 December 2019 the number of employees of the Group and the Company was 39 and 24, respectively {(as of
31 December 2018 — 40 and 24, respactively).

The ultimate parent company is PJSC Inter RAD, company code 2320109650, address Bolshaya Pirogovskaya st 27,
building 2, Moscow 113435, Russian Federalion.

As al 31 December 2018 and 2018 the Company's share capital was comprised of 20,000,000 ordinary shares with
the par value of EUR 0.29 each. The share capital was fully paid as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. The Company
did not hold its own shares in 2012 and 2018, As at 31 December 2012 and 2018, the subsidiaries and the joint venture
did not hold any shares of the Company.

Tha management of the Company approved these financial statements on 7 February 2020, The shareholders of the
Company have a statutory right to either approve these financial statements or not approve them and reguire a new
set of financial statemants to be prepared.
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AB INTER BAD LIETUVA, company code 126113313, A.Tuméne str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts are in EUR thousand uniess otherwise stated)

General information (cont'd)

As at 31 Dacember 2019 the Group consisted of the Company and the following directly controlled subsidiaries and
joint venlure (hereinafter, the Group):

Directly and
Indirecthy Investment Profit Equity As
Company held value (cost at 31 Aegistration .
Company code effective leas fn{{-ﬂ;ﬂg December addrass Acthviby
atiributable | impairment) 2019
interest
! Paterburi tee
OU INTER RAO Eesti - 11878805 100 % 32 (35) 39 | 47, Tallinn, Tradeof
subsidiary Estonta eleckricity
Gustava
SIA INTER RAC Latvia Zemgala galve | Trade of
- subsidiary IRVIdnaEN it o L (298} | g, Riga, alactricity
Lafvia
['warchs 18 00-
Sp.zoo IRLPolska- | 400436002 100 % 2302 | 1,300 2,083 | 105, Warszaw, Tlmdlf ‘?‘:
subsidiary Paland electricity
oy Vearkly Sir.
UAB Alproka —joint 125081684 40,89 % : ; 95C. Vilnius, }l"“‘:l';;u
veniure Lithuania L on
A A Tumeno o ,
Wydmantai wind park, A i Generafion
UAB - subsidiary S02nbea1n L 8,508 2053 15343 E‘E‘t;jé:“a””s- of electricity

As at 31 December 2018 the Group consisted of the Company and the following directly and indirectly controlled

subsidiaries and joint venture (hereinafter, the Group);

Directly and
indirectly Investment Profit Equity As
Company hatd value (cost at 31 Registration
Company coda effective less 1,&';2‘“31]5 December addresa Rttty
atiributable | impairment) 2018
interest IiL,.
i Fetarbur tee
O INTER RAC Eastl - Trade of
: 11872805 100 %% 32 (294) 71 | 47, Tallinn, :

subsidiary Cetonia electricity
Gustava

SIA INTER RAQ Latvia Zamgala gatve | Trada of

- subssidiary it 0% ¥ (35) (482} | 75 Riga, alectricity
Latvig
Twarda 18 00-

Sp. zo.o. IRL Polska - x : ; Trade of

sy 0000436992 100 % 1,719 201) 1,652 | 105, Warsaw, | -~ city
Patand

R Varkiy Str. Operations
el it e 125281684 49.99 % (27) 158 | 25C, Vilnius, | with real
eI Lithuania estale
TR A Tuméeno
Wydmantai wind park, . ; 2 5 Ganeration
UAR - subsidiary 302666616 100 % 8,500 57 13,345 Eig;:ér:{:n[usl of alectricity

Changes in 2018

In 2019 accumulaled impaiment of investment into Sp. z 0.0. IRL Polska was reversad crediting general and
administrative expenses in amount of EUR 673 thousand {Mote 19) in the slatement of comprahensiva income,

Changes in 2018

In 2018 the Company estimated the recoverable value of investmeant into Sp. z o.o. IRL Polska using the “adjusted net
assests” approach as the market value of the investment was nol available (Mota 2.4) and recorded the impairment in
amount of EUR 188 thousand under general and administrative expenses (Note 19) in the staterment of comprehensive

income.
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AB INTER RAD LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tumeéno str. 4, Vilnjus, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts ara in EUA thousand uniess olherwise stated)

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the Group’s and the Company's financial statements for the year
2019 are as follows:

2.1. Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Repaorting Standards (IFRS),
as adopted by the European Union (hercinalter the EU).

These financial statements are prepared based an a historical cost basis oxcept for derivative financial instruments and
invastment property, which are measurad at fair valus.

Adoption of new and/or changed IFRS and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
interpretations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year excepl for the following
amended IFRSs which have been adopted by the Group/Company as of 1 January 2019:

+« [FRIC INTERPETATION 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Trealments
Tha Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes whan fax treatments involve uncertainty that affocts
the application of 1AS 12. The Interpretation provides guidance on considering uncertain tax treatments separately
or together, examination by tax authonities, the appropriate method to reflect uncertainly and accounting for changss
in facts and circumstances. The implementation of this Interpretation had no impact for the Group/Company,

=« [FRAS 9: Prepayment features with negative compensation (Amendment)
The Amendment allows financial assets with prepayment features that permit or require a pariy to a contract cither
to pay or receive reasonable compensation for the early termination of the contract {so that, from the perspective
of the holder of the asset there may be ‘negative compensation’), to be measured al amortized cost or al fair value
through other comprehensive income. The implementation of this Amendment had no impact for the
Group/Company.

« [|AS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments)

The Amendments relate to whether the measurement, in particular impairment requirements, of long term interests
in associates and joint ventures that, in substance, form part of the ‘net investment' in the associate or joint venture
should be governed by IFRS 9, |AS 28 or a combination of bath. The Amendments clarify thal an entity applies
IFRS 2 Financial Instruments, before it applies 1AS 28, to such long-term interests for which the equity method is
not applied. In applying IFAS 8, the enfity does not take account of any adjustments to the carrying amount of long-
term interests that anse from applying 1AS 28, The impact of the implementation of these amendments was nol
material for the Group/Company.

= JAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments)
The Amendments require entities to use updated actuaral assumptions to determing current service cost and net
interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement has
occurred. The amendments also clarify how the accounting for a plan amendment, curiailment or settlement affecis

applying the asset ceilling requirements. Implementation of these amendments had no material impact for the
Group/Company.

The IASB has issued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cyele, which is a collection of amendments
lo IFRSs. Implementation of these improvement had no material impact for the Group/Company.
= IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that
when an enfity obtains conlrol of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests in
that business. The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is
a joinl operation, the entity does not remeasure previously held interests in that business.
= JAS 12 Income Taxes: The amendments clarfy that the income tax conseguences of paymants on financial
instruments classified as equity should be recognized according to where the past transactions or evenls thal
generaled distributable profits has been recognized.
= IAS 23 Borrowing Costs: The amendments clarify paragraph 14 of the standard that, when a qualitying asset
is ready for its inlendad use or sale, and some of the specific borrowing related to that qualifying assel remains
outstanding at that point, that borrowing is to be Included in the funds that an entity borrows generally.
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AB INTER RAD LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno sir. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2018
{all amounts are in EUA thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Aecounting policies (cont'd)

2.1. Basis of preparation (cont'd)

IFRS 16: Leases

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Leass, SIC-15
Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Invalving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognize mast leases on the balance sheet Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from 1AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases
using similar principles as in I1AS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 did not have an impact for leases where the Group and
the Company is the lessor,

The Group and the Company have adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach of adoption with
the date of initial application of 1 January 2018. Under this method, the standard is applisd retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying the standard is recognized in relainad eamings at the date of initial application
and comparative information is not restated.

The Group and the Company have lease contracts for maotor vehicles, office premises and land plots. Before tho
adoption of IFRS 186, the Group and the Company classified aach of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as
eithar a finance lease or an operating lease. Refer to Note 2,16 Leases for the accounting policy prior to 1 January
2019.

Upon adoption of [FRS 16, the Group and the Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases except for shor-term leases and leases of low-value assels. Refer to Mote 216 Lea=zes for tha
accounling policy beginning 1 January 2019. The standard provides specific transition requirements and practical
expedients, which have been applied by the Group and the Company,

Leases previously classified as finance leases

The Group did not change the initial carrying amounts of recognized assets and liabilities at the date of initial
application for leases praviously classified as finance leases {i.e., the righl-of-use assels and lzase liabilities aqual
the lease assets and liabilities recognized under IAS 17). The requirements of IFRS 16 were applied to these leases
from 1 January 2019,

Leases previously classified as operating loasos

The Group and the Company recognized right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previously
classified as operaling leases, excepl lor shorl-lerm leascs and leasas of low-value assels. Lease liabilities were
measured al the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group's and the Company's
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application, i.e. 1 January 2019,

The Group and the Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:
e used a single discount rate to a puﬂfbtio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;
¢ applied the shor-lerm leases exemptions {o loases with lease term that ends within 12 months of the date of
initial application;
= gxcluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use assat at the date of inifial application;

= used hindsight in determining the lease term where the conlract contained options to extend or terminate the
lease.

The effect of adopting IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 (increase/{decroass)) is, as follows:

Group Company
Azzets
Right-of-use asseis 1,036 303
Property, plant and equipment (576} -
Total assets 460 03
Liabilities
Lease 1,111 303
Financial lease obligations (651) .
Total liabilities 460 ana
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2012
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting policies (cont'd)

2.2, Basis of preparation (cont'd)

As at 1 January 2019 Right-of-use assets of EUR 1,036 thousand and EUR 303 thousand were recognized and
presented separately in the statements of financial position of the Group and the Company, respectively. For the
Group this includes the loase assets recognized previously under finance leases of EUR 576 thousand that were
reclassified from Properly, plant and equipment. As al 1 January 2019 additional lease liabilities of EUR 460
thousand were recognized in the statements of financial position of the Group and the Company, raspactively.

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 can be reconciled to the operating lease commitments as of 31 December
2018, as follows:

Group Company
Oparating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 323 266
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2018 2% 2%
Discounter operaling lease commiiments as al 1 January 2018 315 261
Add:
Extension and termination options reasonably certain to be exercised 145 42
Commitments relating to leases previously classified as finance loases 651 -
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 1,111 303

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group/Company has not applied the following IFRS and IFRIC interprotations that have been issued as of the date
of authorization of these financial statements for issue, but which are not yel effective:

INTERRAO

Amendment in IFRS 10 Conzolidated Financial Statementz and 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Assaociate or Joint Venture

The amendmeants address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and thosa in |AS
28, in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
main consequence of tha amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves g
business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a fransaction involves
assets that do not conslitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary, In December 2015 the
|ASE postponed ihe effective date of this amendment indefinitaly pending the oulcome of its research project on
the equity method of accounting. The amendments have not yet boen endorsed by the EU. The Group/Company
has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of this amendment.

Conceptual Framework in IFRS standards

The IASB issued the revised Gonceptual Framework for Financial Reporting on 29 March 2018. The Conceplual
Framework sels oul a comprehensive sel ol concepls for financial reporing, standard setling, guidance for
preparers in developing consistent accounting policies and assistance to othars in their efforts to understand and
interpret the standards. |1ASB also issued a separate accompanying document, Amendments o References to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, which sets out the amendmaonts to affected standards in order to update
references Lo the revised Conceptual Framework. It's objective is to support transition o the revised Concepiual
Framework for companies that develop accounting policies using the Conceptual Framework when no IFRS
Standard applies to a paricular transaction. For preparers who develop accounting policies based on the
Conceplual Framework, it is effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2020,

IFRS 3: Business Combinations (Amendments)

The |ASE issued amendments in Definition of a Business {(Amendmenis to IFRS 3) aimad at resolving the difficulties
that anse when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The Amendments
are effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is in the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020 and to asset acquisitions thal occur on or after the beginning of that period, with earlier
applicalion permitted. These Amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EL. The Group/Gompany has not
yet evaluated the impact of the Implementation of these amendments.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS B Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors: Definition of ‘material’ (Amendments)

The Amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with earlier application
permitted. The Amendments clarify the definilion of material and how it should ba applied. The new definition states
that, "Information is malerial if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influsnce
decisions that the primary users of genaeral purpose financial statemenis make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information aboul a specifie reporting antity'’. In addition, the explanations
accompanying the dedinition have been improved. |he Amendments also ensure that the definition of material is
consistent across all IFRS Standards. The Group/Company has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation
of these amendmeants.
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AB INTER RAD LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
- {all amounts are in EUR thousand unless othenwise stated)
S
2 Accounting policies (cont'd)
]
2.1. Basis of preparation (cont'd)
o = Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - IFRS 9, IAS 38 and IFRS 7 (Amendments)
- The armendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and must be applied
- retrospectively, Earlier application s permitted. In September 2019, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 9, IAS
) 39 and IFRS 7, which concludes phase one of its work to respond to the effects of Interbank Offered Rates (IBOR)
s reform on financial reporting. Phase two will focus on issues that could affect financial reporting when an existing
interast rate banchmark is replaced with a risk-free interest rate (an AFR). The amendments published, deal with
=1 issues affecting financial reporting in tha period before tha replacement of an axisting interest rata benchmark with
- an allernative interest rate and address the implications for specific hedge accounting reguirements in IFRS 8@
; Financial Instrumenis and |AS 39 Financial Instrumants: Recognition and Measurement, which require forward-
= looking analysis. The amendments provided temporary reliefs, applicable to all hedging relationships that are
directly affected by the interest rate benchmark reform, which enable hedge accounting to continue during the
m period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an allernalive nearly risk-
free interest rate. There are also amendments o IFAS 7 Financial Instruments; Disclosures regarding additional
#a disclosures around uncertainty arising from the interest rate banchmark reform. The Group/Company has not yet
) evaluated the impact of the implementation of these amendments.
= « IAS 1 Presentatlon of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
' (Amendments)
- The amendments are effective for annual repoding pericds beginning on or alter January 1, 2022 with eatlier
application permitted. The ameandments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by halping
-'_u companies determine whether, in the statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities with an uncerain
settlemant date should be classified as current or non-current. The amendments affect the presentation of liabilities
= in the statement of financial position and do not change existing requirements arcund measurement or timing of
= recognition of any asset, liability, income or expenses, nor the information that enfities disclose about those items.
: Also, the amendments clarify the classification requirements for debt which may be settled by the company issuing
o own equity instruments. These Amendments have not yel been endorsed by the EU, The Group/Company has not
yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of theso amandments.
=

The Groupd/Company plans to adoptl the above mentioned standards and intcrpretations on their effectiveness date
-1} provided they are endorsed by the EUL

2.3. Measurement and presentation currency

L]

The amounts shown in these financial statements {including comparatives) are presented in the local currency of the
- Republic of Lithuania, Euro (EUR), rounded to EUR thousand, unless otherwise stated,

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries operating in Lithuania is Euro. The functional currency of

subsidiaries in Latvia and Estonia is Euro. The functional currency of the subsidiary in Poland is Zloty. ltems included

. in the financial slatements of this subsidiary are translated into the financial statemenis presantalion currancy as
- described below.

= Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency as at the date of the transaction,
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumrencies are retranslated at the junctional currency rate of
exchange as at the date of the statement of financial position.

b
Thz assets and liahililies of foreign subsidiary are translated into Euro at the reporting date using the rate of exchange
1@ as al the reporting date, and its statement of comprehaensive income is translated al the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The exchange differences arising on this translation are recognised in other comprehensive incoma.
= On disposal of a forelgn subsidiary, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in other comprehensive income relating
’ lo that foreign operation is recognised in profit (loss).
3 Mon-current receivables from or loans granied to foreign subsidiaries that are neither planned nor likely to be settled in
i the future are considered to be a part of the Gompany’s net investment in the foreign operation. In the Group's
=1 c{ms_{:lidatgd iina:_-::ar statements the exchange differences recognized in the separate financial statermenis of the
suhsidgaq.r in relation o these monetary items are reclassified te other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign
= subsidiary, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in olher comprehensive income relating to that foreign operation
> is recognised in profit {(loss).
el
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119813, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting policies (cont'd)
2.4, Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include UAB INTER RBAD Lietuva and its subsidiaries as well as
joint veniure. The financial statements of the subsidiaries and joint venlure are prepared for the same reporing year,
using consistent accounting policies.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from ils involvement with the investoe
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group conlrols an
investes if, and anly if, the Group has:
- Power over the invesiee (Le., exisling rights that give It the current ability Lo direct the relevant activities of the
investes);
- Exposure, or rights, to varable returns from its involvement with the investee;
- The ability to use its power over the investee o affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voling rights result in control.

Subsidiares are consolidated from the date from which control is transterred to the Group and cease to ba consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group, All intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on fransactions among the Group companies have been eliminated. The equity and net income
attributable lo nen-controlling interests, if any, are shown separataly in the statement of financial position and the
statement of comprehensive income.

Total comprehensive income of a subsidiary is attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results In a deficit
balanca.

Acquisitions and disposals of non-controlling interast by the Group are accounted as equity transaction: the difference
between the camying value of the net assets acquired from/disposed to the non-controlling interests in the Group's
financial statements and the acquisition price/procesds from disposal is accounted directly in equity,

Interest in a joint veniura

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangemant have rights
ta the net assets of the joinl venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group has an interest in a joint venture; which is a jointly controlled entity, whereby the venturers have a conftractual
arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic activities of the entity. The agreemeant requires unanimous
agreement for financial and operating decisions among the venturers. The Group recognises ils interest in the joint
veniure using the equity meathod.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transterred, measured at acquisition date fair valug and the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquires. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interast
in the acquires cither at fair value or at the proportionate share of the scquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition
cosls incurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses.

1 the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss. Any contingent
consideration to be transferrad by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed fo be an asset or liahility, i= recognised in accordanca
with IFAS 9 either in profil or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is
classified as equily, it is not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. it this
consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in
profit or [oss.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company cade 126118813, A.Tumeéno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounis are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting policies (cont'd)
2.4. Principles of consolidation (cont'd)

Aftar initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment loszes, Goadwill impairment is
assessed annually. Once recognized, impairment losses are not reversed. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units that are expacted to benefit from the combination, irrespactive of whether other assats or abilities of
the acquiree are assigned Lo thosa units.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposad of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill dispesed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the porlion of the cash-generating unit retained.

2.4. Investments (in the Company’s separate accounts)

Interest in a joint venture

The Company has an interest in a joint venture, which is a jointly controlled entity, whereby the venlures have a
contractual arrangement that establishes joint control aver the economic activities of the entity. The agreement requires.
unanimous agreement for financial and oparating decisions among the venturers. The Company accounts for its
interesl in the joint venture at cost less impairment.

Intarests in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment in the statement of financial position of the Company.
Accordingly, the investment is initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given subsequently
adjusted for any impairment losses. The carrying value of the investment is tested for impairment when avents or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may exceed the recoverable amount (higher of the two: fair
value less cosis to sell and value in use) of the investment. If such indications exist, the Company makes an estimato
of the investment's recoverable amount. Where the carrying amoum of an investment excesds itz estimatad
recoverable amount, the investment is written down fo its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of comprehansive incoma as general and administrative expense lor the period,

2.5. Intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangible assels acquired separately are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible assats acquired in a business
combination is fair value as al the date of acquisition. Intangible assets are recognised if it is probabla that future
economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of asset can be measurod
refiably.

The useful lives of all intangible assels are assessed to be finite,

After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives
{years]. The wind farm operating license validity term is indefinite, although as per management estimate ils useful life
is associated with the favourable fixed fead-in tariff expiring in 2020,

The amorlisation period of the wind farm operating license 9.5 years

Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired.

The ussful lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed annually to ensure that they are consistent with
the expected paltern of economic benefits from items in inlangible assets other than goodwill.
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v AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
. COMNSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
”. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)
iy
= 2 Accounting policies (cont'd)
- 2.6. Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and squipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
g
' The Initial cost of propery, plant and equipment and invesiment property comprises its purchase price, including non-
1 rofundable purchase taxes and any directly allibulable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use, Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment is ready tor its intended use, such
as repair and maintenance costs, are nomally charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the periad the |
= costs are incurred. |
- Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basizs over the following estimated useful lives (years):
= Oifice premises 15
Buildings and structures 8-20
Machinery and equipment (wind power planis) 20
> Vehicles 5-10
Other fittings, fistures, tools and equipment 3-6

= The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed annually to ensure that they are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits from items in proparty, plant and equipment.

L)
An item of propery, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
~ expected from ifs use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assel (calculated as the difference

between lhe net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of comprahensive

: incomie in the year the asset is derecognised.
i

i 2.7. Investment property
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent o initial recognition,
= investment properies are stated al fair value, which reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in profit and loss in the period in
-5 which they arise under general and administrative expanses. Investmenl properties are derecognised when either they

have been disposed of ar when the investment propery is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognised in profit and loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

= Transfers are made to investment properly when, and only when, there is a change in use, ovidenced by the end of
= owner occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another party. Transfers are made from investment
propery when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of owner occupation or
- commencement of development with a view to sell.

= For a transfer from investment property to owner occupied propery or inventories, the deemed cost of property for
subseguent accounling is its fair value at the date of change in use. If the properly cccupied by the Group/Company
as an owner occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group/Company accounts for such property in
accardanca with the policy adopted for property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use. For a transfer
from property, plant and equipment to investment property, any differences betwesn fair value of the property at that
= date and its pravious carrying amount are recognised in the revaluation reserve.

= As of 31 December 2019 the management has assessed thal the carrying value of the investment property (aparimenis)
) is equal to its fair value as included in the financial staterments based on publicly availabla information about real estate
markat changes and market price level in relovant geographic area (level 3 in fair value hierarchy) whersas as of 31
December 2018 the Company has estimated lair value of investment property based on expert opinion provided by

independent valuators, which was supporied by analysis of actual recent comparahle real estate selling transactions
s (level 3 in fair value hierarchy).
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AB INTER BAO LIETUVA, company code 1267119813, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise slated)

2 Accounting policies (cont'd)
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2.8. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another enlity,

i) Financial assels

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assetls are classified, al initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCH), and fair value through profit ar loss.

The classilication of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's/Company's businass modsl for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
and contract assets that do nol contain a significant linancing component, the Group/Company initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at tair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at
tha transaction price delermined under [FRS 15,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured al amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPFI)' on the principal arount outstanding, This
assessment is referrad to as the SPP| test and is performed at an instrumeant level.

The Group's/Company’s business model for managing financial asseis refors to how the Group/Company manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business modsal determines whethar cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

A regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, i.g., the date that the
Group/Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subseguent measurement

Adter initial recognition, the Group/Company measures a financial asset at
a}) Amorised cost (debt instruments);
B} Fair value through QG| with recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (debt instruments),
The Group/Gompany did not have such itams as at 31 December 2019 and 2018,
c) Fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon dorccognition (egquity
instruments). The Group/Company did not have such items as at 31 December 2012 and 2018;
d) Fair valus through profit or loss (MNote 2.13).

Financial assels al amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group/Company measures financial assels at amortised cost if bolh of the following condifions are mot;

il The financial as=set is hald within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order lo collect
contractual cash flows; and

ii) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dales lo cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject

to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Group's/Company's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade, other current and non-cuirent receivables,
loans granted and contract assets (il any).
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- AB INTER HAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
- (all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)
. 2 Accounting policies (cont'd)
- 2.8. Finaneial instruments (cont’'d)
= Financial assets at fair value through profil ot loss
- Financial assets at fair value through profit ar loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
- upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or linancial asssls mandatorily required 1o be measured at
fair value. Financial assels are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
Cm repurchasing in the near tarm. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
' trading unless they are designated as cffective hedging instruments (as defined by IFRS 9). Financial assels with cash
- flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest ara classified and measured at fair valus through profit or
loss, irespective of the business model. Nolwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised
= cost or at fair value through OCI, as descrbed above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through profit
- or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch. Financial assets
- al fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
c.- value recognised in the stalement of comprehensive income (Mote 2.13).
o Impairment of financial assats
. Following IFRS 9, in common case scenario, the Group/Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
— (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between
— the conlractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash llows that the Company expects to
= receive, discountad at an approximation of the otiginal effective interest rate. ECLs are recognised in two stages. For
credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
== provided tor cradit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months {a 12-month ECL),

For those credit exposuras for which there has been a significant increase in cradit risk since initial recognition, a loss
— allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
= default {a lifetime ECL),

- For trade receivables and conlract assets, the Group/Company applies a simplified approach in calculatling ECLs.
Therefore, the Group/Company does not track changes in credil risk, bul instead recognises a loss allowance basod
m on litstime ECLs at sach reporting date. For that purpose the Group/Company has established a provision matrix that

is based on ils historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
— economic environment. The Group/Company considers a financial asset in default when contraciual payments are 80

- days past dus or when indications exisi that the debtors or a group of deblors are experiencing significant financial
_ dilliculty, defaull or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other
= financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate thal there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears of economic conditions that corralate with defaults. A financial asset is written
;E} off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
= i) Financial liabilities
_ Initial recognition and measurement
-
Financial liabilities are classilied, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
- borrowings and payables. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
horrowings and payables, net of directly altributable transaction costs. The Group's/Company's financial liabilities
= include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrails and finance lease liabilities, as well
= as derivalive financials instruments,
= J Subsequent measuremeant
o Tha measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described balow,
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profil or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial iabifities held for trading and financial iabilities

- J designated upon initial recognition as at fair valug through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classitied as held for

trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative

- financial instruments entered into by the Group/Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge

relalivnships as dci_ineti by IFRS 9: Sepaaled ombeodded derivalives are also classilied as held [or trading unless they

- are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recoanised in the
=2 statermnent of comprehensive income (Note 2.13).
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- AB INTER RAQ LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANO COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
= {all amounts are in ELIR thousand unless olherwise stated)
= 2 Accounting policies (cont'd)
- 2.9, Financial instruments (cont'd)
= Loans, borrowings and other payables
- After initial recagnition, loans, borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amorised cost using the
~ EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprohensive income, when the liabilities ara
B derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
cm discount .or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income.
-
= Offseftting of financial instruments
» Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the statement of financial position
; if there is a currently enforceable lagal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to sotfle on a not
‘- basis, i.e. io realise the asseis and sellie the liabilities simultansously,
e 210. Derecognition of financial instruments
~ Financial assets
oo
- & financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
= derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's/Company's stalement of financial position) when:
—4 i} The rights to receive cash flows from the assct have axpired or
- i) The Group/Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
— obligation o pay the received cash flows in full without matevial delay to a third pary undsr a 'pass-
through' arrangement; and either (a) the Group/Company has transierred substantially all the risks and
T rewards of the asset, or {b) the Group/Gompany has neither transferred nor retained substanfially all the
= risks and rewards of the asset, bul has transferred control of the asset.
= When the Group/Company has transierred its rights to receive cash flows from an assel or has enterad into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it
— ] has neither lransferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assel, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group/Company continues to recognise the transferred asset 1o the extent of its continuing involvement. In
o that case, the Group/Company also recognises an associated liability, The transferrad asset and the associated liability
' are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group/Company has retained.
= —
- Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guaraniee over the transterred asset is measurad at the lower of the
- original carrying amount of the assef and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group/Company could be
- J required o repay (amount of the guarantee).
‘:, Financial liabilities
) A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When
- an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
— original ability and lhe recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised
- in the statement of comprahensive income.
-
-
-
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AB INTER RAD LIETUVA, company code 126118913, A.Tuména str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUA thousand unless otherwise stated)

Acecounting policies (cont’d)
2.10. Fair value measurement

Fair valua is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, The Group and the Company uses valuation techniques thal
are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sullicient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inpul that is significant to the fair value
measuremant as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (LUnadjusted) markat prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowesl level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
diroctly or indirectly ohservable;

Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservabla.

For assets and liabiliies that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group and the
Company determines whether transiers have occurred belween Lavals in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
{based an the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whoie) at the end of each reporting
period,

211, Inventories

Inventories are valued ai the lower of cost or naet realisable value, after impairment evaluation for obsolete and slow
moving items. Mel realisable value is the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less tha costs of completion,
markating and distribution. Cost of inventory is determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Unirealisable inventory
is fully written-off.

2.12.Cash and cash equivalents

Gash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Gash equivalents are shori-term, highly liquid investmenis that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an
insignificant nisk of change in value. Bank accounts held for the purpose of automated tax payments and
reimbursements are considerad as cash equivalent as wall.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents cornprise cash on hand and in current bank
accounis as well as deposits in bank with original lerm equal 1o or less than 3 months and fax bank accounts.

2.13.Derivative financial instruments

The Group engages in swap contract for interest rate and the Group and the Company engages in forward contract for
electricily price risk management purposes. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized and subsegquently
carried in the slatement of financial position at the fair value. Fair value is derived from quoted market prices {level 1 in
fair value hierarchy), or using the discounted cash flow method applying effective interest rate (level 2 in fair valug
hierarchy). The estimated fair values of these coniracts are reported on a gross basis as financial assets for contracts
having a posilive fair value, and financial liabilitias for contracts with a negative fair value,

Gain or loss from changes in the fair value of outstanding forward contracts, swaps and other derivative financial
instruments, which are not classified as hedging instruments, are recognized as profit or loss in the statement of
comprohansive income as they arise.
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2 Accounting policies (cont'd)
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2.14. Hedge accounting

For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges are classified into two categoriss: (a) fair value hedges which hedge
the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability; and (b) cash flow hedges which hedge
exposure to variability in cash flows thal is sither attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or
liability or a forecasted transaction. The Group and the Company use cash flow hedge.

In relation to cash flow hedges, which meet the conditions for hedge accounting, the portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognized initially in other comprehensive income
and the ineffective portion is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income (profit or loss). The gains or losses
on effective cash flow hedges recognized initially in equity are either transforred fo the statement of comprehensive
income (profit or loss) in the period in which the hedged transaction impacts the statement of comprshensive income
{revenue caption for the electricity forward contracts) of included in the initial measurement of the coslt of the related
asset or liahility.

For hedges, which do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes in the Tair value of the
hedging instrument are taken direclly to the statement of comprehensive income (profit or loss) for the period.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in equity remains in
equity uniil ihe forecasted transaction occurs. Where the hedged transaction is no longer expectad lo ocour, the net
cumulative gain or loss recognized in equity is transferred to the siatement of comprehensive income (profit or loss).

In 2019 and 2018 the Group has entered into interest swap agreement with a purpose 1o hedge against a possible
fluctuationfincrease of EURIBOHR on the loan taken from a bank, i. e. effectively swilching the intorost into a fixed rate
(Mote 14). In 2019 and 2018 the Group and the Company have entered into electricity forward contracts with a purpose
to hedge against a possible fluctuation of electricity prices (Mote 14). The Company is exposed to the risks of electricity
price and interast rate volalility. These hedged items are subject to a single risk componant, thus the Company hedged
an item in itz entirety, not splitling into different components.

There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument as the terms of the interast
rate swap match the terms of the fixed rate loan (Le., nolional amount, maturity, paymenl and reset dates) and the
terms of electrcity forwards matches the terms of the highly probable forecast electricity purchase (i.e., notional amount,
maturity), The Group/Company has established a hadge ratio for the hedging relationships as the undarlying risks ara
closely refated to the hedged risk componenl. To test the hedge effectiveness, the Group/Company uses the
hypothetical derivative method and compares the changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument against the
changes in tair value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

The hedge ineffectiveness can arise from;

= Differences in timing of cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument;

= The counterparties’ credit risk differently impacting the fair value movements of the hedging instrument and hedged
item;

« Changes to the forecasted amount of cash flows of hedged items and hedging instruments.

2.15.Borrowings

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset thal necassarily takes a
subslantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capilalised as part of the cost of the respective
assels. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. The Group and the Company capitalises
borrowing cosis for all qualifying assets, however, there were no borrowing costs matching the capitalisation criteria in
2019 and 2018,

Borrawings are initially recognized at fair value of proceeds recaived, less the costs of transaction. They ame
subsequently camed at amortised cost, the difference between nel proceeds and redemption value being recognised

in the net profit or loss over the period of the borrowings (except for the capitalized part) using the effective interest
rmathod.
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= CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
-
| " FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2013
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- 2  Accounting policies (cont'd)
= 2.16.Lease — Group/Company as a lessee
= Palicy applicable from 1 January 2019
= The Group and the Company assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
: contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
o

The Group and the Company apply a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
me tenn leases and leases of low-value assels. The Group and the Company recognize lease liabilities to make lease
4 payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

-
. Right-of-use assels
- The Group and the Company recognize right-of-use assets al the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
' underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
) and impairment losses, and adjusied for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease lisbilities recognized, initial direcl costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
. commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-lino basis
— oveor the sharter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assats, as follows:
- Land 20
- Office premises 15
= Motar vehicles 5-10
i If ownership of the leased assel transfers to the Group and the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
. the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful lifo of the assel,
- The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment (Note 2.19).
— Lease liabifities
At the commencement dale of the lease, the Group and the Company recognize lease liabilities measured at the
- present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term, The lease payments include fixed paymenis {including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
= or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
= exercise price of a purchase option reasonably cerain to be exarcised by the Group and the Company and payments
= of penallies for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group and the Company exercising the option 1o
) terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless thay
N are incurred to produce invenloties) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
. . ;
= In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Group and the Company use its incremeantal borrowing rate at
: the leasa commencement cate if the interest rate implicit in the lsase is not readily determinable. After the
o

commeancament date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
- change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change

in an index or rate used to delermine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an oplion o purchase
- the underlying asset.

Shart-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group and the Company apply the short-term lease recognition examption to its shor-lerm leases (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months ot less from the commencement date and da not contain a purchase option)
= and also apply the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered

lo be low value. Lease payments on shori-term leases and leases of low-valus assets are recognized as expense on
- a straight-line basis over tha lease torm,

Folicy applicable before 1 January 2019

-
- The dstermination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement al
= inception date of whether the fulfiiment of tha arrangemeant is dependent on the use of a specific assel or assals or the
) arrangement conveys a right to use an assel.,
.
=
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 Decambar 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Accounting policies {cont'd)

216 Lease — Group/Company as a lessee (cont'd)

Financial lease

Finance leases that transfer to the Group and the Company substantially all the risks and benefils incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencemant of the leasa. The Group and the Company
recognise financial leases as assets and liabilities in the statoment of financial position al amounts equal at the inception
of the lease lo the fair value of the leased properly or, if lower, to the prasent value of the minimum lease payments.
The rate of discount used when calculating the prosent value of minimum payments of financial lease is the interast
rata implicit in the financial lease agreement, when it is possible to determine it, in other cases, Group's/Company's
incremental interest rate on barrowings applies. Directly atiributable initial costs are included into the assef value. Leaso
payments are apporioned between the finance charges and raduction of the lagase liability 50 as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

The depreciation is accounted for financial lease assets. The depreciation policy for lcased assets is consistent wilh
that for depreciable assals that are owned. The leased assets cannot be depreciatod over a period longer than lease
lerm, unless the Group and the Company, according to the loase contract, obtains ownership at the end of the leaso
tarm.

Operating lease

Leases where the lessor retains all significant risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating

leases. Operating lease payments arg recognised as an expanse in the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term,

237.Income tax

The Group companies are taxed individually, irrespective of the overall results of the Group. Income tax charge is
based on profit for the year and considers deferrad taxation, The charge for taxation included in these financial
slatements is based on the calculation made by the management in accordance with tax legislation of fha Hepublic of
Lithuania, the Republic of Latvia, the Republic of Estonia and the Republic of Poland.

The standard income tax rate in Lithuania is 15%, in the Republic of Poland — 19%, in the Republic of Latvia — 0% and
in the Republic of Estonia — 0% (though dividends for Latvia and Estonia paid are taxed as explained further).

Starting from 1 January 2014 the tax loss carry-forward that is deductible cannot exceed 70% of the current financial
year laxable profit in Lithuania. Tax losses can be carried forward for indefinile period, excepl for the losses incurred
as a result of disposal of securities and/or derivative financial instruments, Such carrying forward is disrupted if the
company changes its activities due to which these losses ware incurred except when the company does not continue
its activities due lo reasons which do not depend on the company itself. The losses from disposal of securities andfor
derivalive financial instruments can be carried forward for 5 consecutive years and only be used to reduce the taxable
income eamed from Ihe transactions of the same nature.

Tax losses in the Republic of Poland may be carried forward to the lollowing five tax years to offset profits from all
sources that are derived in those years, Up to 50% of the onginal loss may offset profits in any of the five tax
years. Losses may not be carried back, ;

As the object of laxation in Estonia and Latvia (starting 1 January 2018) is dividends, not profit, there are no differences
between the carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities which could give rise to dofarred tax assets ar
liabilities at subsidiary lavel. The income tax payable on dividends is recognised as the income tax expanse of the
period in which the dividends are declared. The tax rate in Estonia and Latvia for 2019 and 2018 was 20/80 of the
amount distributed as the net dividend. Also no deforred lax was recognized on these investments in consolidated
financial statements as the Parent antity controls timing of reversal of temporary differences and does not plan to
distribute eamings of these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. If all retained samings of Estonian subsidiary would

be distributed as dividends, tax liability would be immaterial (there is no distributable profit sccumulated in Latvian
subsidiary).

Deferred laxes are ealculatad using the liability method. Deferred taxes reflect the nel tax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for income tax purposes. Deforred tax assels and liabilities are measured using tho tax rates expected to apply
o taxable income in tho years in which thase temporary differences are expected o bo recoverad or solled based on
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the date of the statement of financial position.
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AB INTEAR RAD LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A. Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless atherwise stated)

2 Accounting policies (cont’d)

2.17. Income tax (cont'd)

Deforred lax assels have been recagnised in the statement of financial position to the extent the management believes
it will be realised in the loresceable fulure, based on taxable profit forecasts. If it is belioved that part of the deferred
tax is not going to be realised, this part of the deferred tax asset is not recognised in the financial statomants.

2.18.Revenue recognition

Bevenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracls with customers is recognised when control of the services or goods are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group/Company expects to be entitlad in exchange
for those services or goods. The Group/Company has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements
(except for agenlt activily described below), because:

- The entity controls the goods or services before transterring them to the customer;

- The entity is primarily responsible for eleclricity supply and bears risk of non-pedarmance;

- The entity has lafituds in establishing price either diractly or indirectly.

Management made the judgement that for the quantity of electricity sold by the Company in power exchangs and
acquired by the subsidiaries in Latvia and Estonia from power exchange, the Company in substance has customer
contracts with subsidiaries as definad by IFAS 15.

Sale of electricity is recognised at the time of delivery, based on the value of the volume supplied. Physical alactricity
sales and purchase contracts are accounted for on accrual basis as they are contracted with the Group's/Company's
expaciad purchase, sale or usage requirements.

Accrued income representing electricity supplied until the last day of the maonth, for which invoice is is=uad next monih
is presented as Conlract assets. These Contract assots are unconditional, They are disclosad in the separate line of
the statement of financial position and reclassified to trade accounts receivable as soon as sales invoicos are issued
in subsequent manth.

Physical electricity sales and purchases are done through the power exchange,

Equivalent trades on power exchange is presented net, i.e. the sales and purchases are netted on the Company and
the Group level on an hourly basis and posted either as revenue or cost, according to whether the Company and the
Group is a net seller or a net buyer during any particular hour,

Electricily grid services related revenue are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in net amount by
applying the agent accounting principle as:

- The enlity has not the primary responsibility for electricity grid services:

- The entity has no latitude in establishing prices, sither directly or indirectly.

Hevenue from sales of produced electricity is recognised based on aciually lransmitted volume of electricity producad,

Revenue from other services is recognisad when services are renderad, although such transactions are rear and not
matetial.

Dus to the Group's/ Company’s business nature, apart from what is described in this note, the mariagement did not
make any other significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumplions relating to recognition of revenue from
contracts with customers, as there are no complex/mulii-slemental services or goods, no variable consideration,

financing component, contract cost or amounts payable to the customars, excepl for the judgement disclosed in Mote
220,

Other income:

Dividend income is recognised when the dividends are declared.

Interest income or expense are recorded using tha effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to th net CaArrying

amount of the financial asset or liability. It is included in finance income or expenses in the statement of comprehensive
income,
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= AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str, 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
= CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
-~ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
= {all amounts are in EUA thousand unless otherwise stated)
Fo -
- 2 Accounting policies (cont'd)
- 2.19.Impairment of non-financial assets
— Other assets (excludin dwill
- Olher assels are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changas in circumstances indicate that carmying amount
e of an asset may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Reversal of impairment losses recognised
‘- in prior years is recorded when there is an indication thal the impairment losses rocognised for the asset no longer
exist of have decraased. The reversal is accounted for in lize same caption of the statement of comprehensive income
- as the impairment loss,
= 2.20.Use of judgmenis and estimates in the preparation of financial statements
ey
The preparation of financial stalements in conformity witii Intemational Financial Reporting Standards requires
- management to make judgements, estimates and assumplions thal affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses and disclosure of contingencies.
= Significant area of judgement
- Significant area of judgement used in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements redates to accounting
treatment of electricity forward contracts concluded in Commadity Forward Instruments Market (CFIM) in Poland.
- Although, CFIM rules state that the contracts require physical delivery of electricity, in practice, the Group settles most
= of its confracts net in cash by entering into offselting contracts within a short peried for the purpose of generating a
e profit from short-term price fluctuations or dealer's margin. The management concluded that despite the formal

staternent that contracts are setiled by physical delivery of electricity, in substance, these forward contracts to sell and
purchase electricity are derivative contracts and, therefore, only net result from such electricily forward contracts is
- presented in tha profit and loss.

- Significant areas of estimation

Significant areas of estimation used in the preparation of the accompanying financial statemenis relate to depreciation
and amortisation (Motes 2.5, 2.6, 2,16, 4 and 5), fair value of the investment property (Mote 2.7), hedge effectivenass
estimation (Note 2.14), impairment evaluation of goodwill and licences, including allocation of Group assels to cash
— generating units (Motes 2.4 and 4), impairment evaluation of investments to subsidiaries (MNote 1), the land lease
classificalion and measurement (Note 5 and 2.18) and revenue recognition (Mote 2.18). The management also mada

-~ a juagement regarding the provision for the wind power plants dismantfing, which was considered not material taking
I into account the passage of ime and expected value of the cost to dismantle. Future events may occur which will cause
=3 the assumptions used in amiving at the estimates to changa. The effect of any changes in estimates will be recarded
- in the financial statements, when determinable,
- Af the date of the preparation of these financial statements, the underlying assumplions and estimates were not subject
to a significant risk that the camying amournts of assets and liabilities will have to be adjusted significantly as a result of
- changes in estimates in the subsequent financial year.
- 2.21.Contingencies
— Contingent liabilities are nol recognised in the financial statements, except tor contingent liabilities associated with
= business acquisitions. They are disclosed unless lhe possibility of an outilow of resources embodying economic
- benelils is remote.
k.
A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statemants bul disclosed when an inflow or economic benefits are
.- probable.
= The tax authorities may at any time during the consecutive 5 subsequent tax years examing the books and accounting
records and calculaie the additional taxes and penaltics. The Group's/Company's management does not know any
: circumstances, which could result in potential significant liability in this regard.
=
2.22 Subsequent evenis
o : » -
Subsequent E.Vnntﬂ, that provide additional information abowt the Group's and the Company’s position ot the date of
o staternent of financial posilion (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Subsequent avents that ars
~ not adjusting evenls are disclosed in the notes when material.
-
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AB INTER RAC LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuména sir, 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
COMSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounis are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on type of activilies and has wo
reporable segments:

= Purchase and sales of electricily,
=  Production and sales of electricity.

The segment of purchase and sales of electricity includes operations of UAB INTER RAD Lietuva, SIA INTER RAD
Latvia, OU INTER RAQ Eesti and Sp. z o.0. |RL Polska. The Group and the Company have entered into contracls for
the purpose of the receipt and delivery of electricity in accordance with the entity's expected purchase, sale or usage
requirements. Furthermore, the Group and the Company also perform trading sales of elactricity on the powor
exchangsa,

The segment of production and sales of electricity includes operations of Vydmantai wind park, UAB. Electricity is
produced by wind turbines and sold to AB Ignitis gamyha,

For management purpeses; the Company is organized inlo a single business unit - purchase and sales of elactricity,
therefore this note does not include any disclosures on operating segments on the Company's level as they are the
same as information provided by the Company in these financial statements,

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the abova reporiable operating segmients.

Segment perfarmance is evaluated based on operating profit of loss and is measured consistently with profit from
operations in the consolidaled financial statements.

Finance income and expenses are allocated to individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed for
each separate segment separately.

Transler prices between operating segments are based on the prices set by the management, which management
considers being similar to transactions with third parties.

Operating Segments

The foliowing tables present revenue, expenses, profit and cerfain asset and liability information regarding the
reportable operaling segments:

Group Electricity Electricity

Year ended 31 December purchases and  production Total Unallocated

2018 _ sales and sales  Segmenls items Consolidated
Revenue

External customers 311,445 5,589 317,034 - 317,034
Total revenue 311,445 5,589 317,034 - 417,034
Results

Depreciation and amortisation 4

(including rights-of-use assels) & i e B 2,633
Interest expenses 48 227 275 ~ 275
Income lax expenses 1,633 337 1,870 - 1,870
Share of resull of the joint i

venture ) ) ) 2
Segment operating

profitfprofit from operations 252 2,648 1h16d i 15,163
Segment assels 43,211 21,852 65,063 - 65,063
Segmaent liabilities 28,873 4,753 33,626 2,216 35,842

Segment aszets and llabililics are presented after elimination of intercompany assets and liabilities within the segment,
which are eliminated on consolidation.

Other disclosures
Interest in & joint venture = . - .

Capital expanditure 11 11 22 - 22

Capital expenditure consists of addilions of property, plant and equipment, inlangible assets, investment properties and
assels from the acquisition of subsidiaries.
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- AB INTER RAD LIETUVA, company code 126118913, A Tuméne str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
- CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
d FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
= (all amounts are in EUA thousand unless otherwise staled)
oy
= 3 Segment information (cont'd)
- Group Electricity Electricity
Year ended 31 December purchases and  production Total Unallocated
- 2018 B sales and sales  Segments items Consolidated
- Revenue
™ External customers 283,913 4,356 288 262 - 288,269
N Total revenue 283,913 4,356 288,269 - 288,269
oy
Results
= Depraciation and amortisation 74 2,336 2,410 - 2,410
= Interest expenses 45 349 394 ¥ 384
= Income tax expenses 3,118 177 3,295 - 3,285
: Share of loss of the joint . B ~
— venture (13) (13)
- Segment operating
prefitfprofit from operations b i L bl . 14,593
- Segment assets 38,825 22,850 61,675 67 61,742
) Segment liabilities 32,214 9,505 41,719 2,564 44,283
-
- Segment assels and liabilities are presented after elimination of intercompany assels and liabilities within the segment,
= which are eliminated on consolidation.
= Other disclosures
Interest in a joint venture - - - 74 79
— Capital expenditure 13 15 28 = 28
Capital expendilure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment, intangible assels, invesiment properties and
= assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.
o
i 31 December 31 December
- Reconciliation of liabilities 2019 2018
o
i Segment operating liabilities 33,626 41,719
) Deferred tax liabilities 1,504 654
B Current tax payable 715 1,910
ol Group total liabilities 35,842 44,283
= 31 December 31 Décember
Reconciliation of assels 2019 2018
-
- Segment operating assets 65,063 61,675
Prepaid income tax & 67
- Group total assets 65,063 61,742
-
)
-
-
-
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-y AB INTER RAD LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
c CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
- (all amounts ars in EUR thousand unless otherwise slated)
¢
- Segment information (contd)
- Geographical infarmation
The following table presents the Group's and the Company's geographical information on revenus based on the
- location of the customers:
Group Company
- 2019 2018 2019 2018
- Lithuania*® 289,524 244,280 282,778 254,014
;. Latvia 12,377 10,750 - -
= Estonia 14771 14,641 5,181 6,388
= Other countries 362 18,5698 275 261
' Total revenue 317,034 288,269 288,234 240,663
= *Excluding equivalant trades on power exchange
Revenus from a single customer exceeding 10% of the Group's and the Company's revenue amounted to EUR 130
- million in 2019 (EUR 162 million in 20718).
. The major part of the Group's and Company's non-current assets is located in Lithuania. Mon-current assets consist of
- property, plant and eguipment, investment property, nght-of-use assels, intangible assels, non-currant financial and
other assets.
-
- Intangible assets
= Other
= Group Operating intangible
: Goodwill license assels Total
= Cost
= Balance as at 31 December 2017 2,875 11,397 2] 14,361
= Balance as at 31 December 2018 2,875 11,397 113 14,385
Additions - E r .
@ Balance as at 31 December 2018 2875 11,397 113 14,385
= Accumulated amortization and impairment
- Balance as at 21 December 2017 2,159 7.778 a4 10,025
= Amorlization for the pericd = 1,206 4 1,210
- Balance a= at 31 Decembar 2018 2,159 8,984 92 11,235
|- Amortization for the period - 1,206 12 1,218
Balance as at 31 December 2019 2,159 10,190 104 12,453
- Net book value as al 31 December 2017 716 3,619 1 4,336
= Met book value as at 31 December 2018 T16 2413 21 3,150
= Met book value as at 31 December 2019 T16 1,207 a 1,932
- The above intangible assets were identified during the purchase price allozation as a result of the business combination
in 2011, when the GCompany acquired wind power plant business operaling under the entity Vydmantai wind park UAB.
= Dpe_rating i_'rc:ense is a license to produce wind generated electricity with an embedded favourable fixed feed-in tariff
_ applied until the end of 2020 (the licenss itself has no validity term although the benefit associated is temporal).
-
; Amaortization expenses and impairment expenses of intangible assels are included into the general and administrative
=i expenses capfion (Note 19) in the statement of comprehensive income.
L
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AB INTER RAD LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand uniess othorwizo stated)

Intangible assets (cont'd)

Goodwill and licences impairment

For the purpose of the impairment test, the goodwill and licences as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were allocated to
the following cash genarating unit (CGU) — wind energy generation and sales business unit — Vydmantai wind park,
UAB.

The recoverable amounl of the cash generaling unit was determined based on the valug in use calculation using
discounted cash flow projections based on the 12 years financial forecasts prepared by the management. The pra-tax
discount rate of 9.5 % (post tax— B.1%) in 2019 and 2018 was applied. Defined period forecast represents the estimated
useful lite of wind power plants, a fixed feed-in tarill was applied to forecasl revenue until 2020 (inclusive), and the
expected markel price is applied starting 2021, The following significant assumptions were used for the assessment of
the value in use in 2018 and 2018:

1) the quantity of electricity produced, which further depends on (i) the availability of wind turbines (it is expected
that availability will not fluctuate significantly over the first hall of the forecasted pariod and in the ramaining
period will decrease due to a normal wear and lear of the equipment, regular maintenznoe of which is
performed) and (i) the efficioncy of wind turbines, depending on the wind speed (efficiency level in a long run
is forecasted at the slightly lower than historical level due to a rather high level of unpradictability);

2} the electricity sales price - revenues are expected to remain rather stable until 2020 due to a feed-in tarnill
appliad, which ensuras the sales of electricity at a stable price, in the following years, electricity will be sold at
market price, which is expectad fo ba inilially lower than the feed-in tariff and to increase over the period by
1.5% growth rate annually. Such forecasts are based on the Group’s management eslimate, since the Group
is ona of the most experienced players in this markst and there is no reliable long-term external prognosis;

3) discount rale — based on the objective market, industry and specific for CGU circumstances (also considaring
a component of higher risk in respect of electricity price related uncertaintias).

As a result of the analysis above, no impairment was recognised in 2019 and 2018.

The management strongly believes that in the long run (considering historical trends) the availability and efficiency
levels of furbines will impact the quantities of the generated electricity in the way that the quantities will be stablz in the
first half of the lorecasled period and will gradually decrease in the remaining period due o natural ageing of equipment
without other significant changes, Therefore, sensitivity analysis for this element was not performed,

The discount rate is derived from weighted average cost of capital (post tax) — WACC (8.1% as at 31 December 2019
and 2018). Considering decreased leveal of interast rates in world markets, it is not expected to change upwards in the
near fulure, therefore sensitivity analysis was not performed. As well there is no sxpected downwards change in
discount rate, although this would result in positive impact.

Electricity price after 2020 cannot be forecasted accurately at the moment, however, if more conservative approach
would be usad, i.e. the prices of electricity starting 2021 would be reduced by 6.5% (in comparison to the currently uzed
management estimate) and further increased by 1.5% each year through the remaining period of the forecast and all
the rest of the assumptions remained constant, the carrying amount of the CGL would be equal to the recoverable
amount calculated. In case even lower electricity prices would be used to forecast cash flows, additional impairment
would occur if discount rate and other key assumptions remain constant.

At the time of preparing these linancial statements the management of the Group did nol expect any significant changes
in the assumptions used, including the electricity prices and discount rate, within the noxt 12 months of the date of the
statement of financial position,
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AB INTER BAD LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tumeéno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 December 2019
fall amounts ars in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Property, plant and equipment and right of use of assels

Movement of property, plant and equipment in 2018 and 2018 is presented balow:

Group Other
Buildings Machinery property
and Office and plant and
Land* structures  premises oquipment equipment Total
Cost o
Balance as at 31 December 2017 873 3,850 1,132 21,424 104 27,383
Additions 5 - = 4 4 4
Write-olfs and disposals . - : - (3) {3)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 873 3,850 1,132 21424 105 27,384
Reclassification (B73) - - - - (B73)
Additions 2 s 4 s 29 29
Write-offs and disposals - N - - {49} (49)
Balance as at 31 Decombor 2018 . 3.850 1,132 21,424 85 26,491
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 31 December 2017 261 1,124 434 6,127 66 8,012
Depreciation for the period 35 164 75 018 6 1,200
Write-offs and disposals - - - - (3} [3)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 o207 1288 510 7,045 G0 9,209
Reclassification (297) & - .. - (297)
Depreciation for the period = 164 75 918 18 1,175
Write-offs and disposals . . . - (47) {47)
Balance as al 31 December 2019 = 1,452 585 7,963 A0 10,040
Net book value as at 31 o
December 2017 612 2,726 698 15,297 38 19,371
Met book value as at 31 N -
Decamber 2018 576 2,562 622 14,379 36 18,175
Met book value as at 31 '
December 2019 - 2,398 547 13,461 45 | 16,451

*Land balance represents capitalised financial land lease (see also Note 2.1).
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A Tuména str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania |

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 20189
{all amounts are in EUA thousand unless otherwise stated)

_

Property, plant and equipment and right of use of assets (cont'd)

Company
Other property plant

Qffice premises and equipment Total
Cost )
Balance as at 31 Decembar 2017 1,132 64 1,196
Additions = m 11 |
Write-nifs and disposals _ - (1g) {19) |
Balance as at 31 December 2018 1,132 56 1,188 |
Additions - 11 11 |
Write-offs and disposals = (48} (48}
Balance as at 31 December 2019 1,132 21 1,163
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 31 December 2017 434 45 479
Depreciation for the period 76 14 a0
Write-offs and disposals - (19) {18}
Balance as at 31 December 2018 510 40 550
Depreciation for the period 75 11 86
Write-offs and disposals = {48) {46)
Balance as at 31 Decamber 2019 585 5 590
Met book value as at 31 December 2017 598 19 "y
Met book value as at 31 December 2018 622 16 638
MNet book value as at 31 December 2019 a4y 16 563

The depreciation charge of the Group's and the Company's property, plant and equipment for the year 2019 amounis
te EUR 1,175 lhousand and EUR 86 thousand, respectively (2018 amounls to EUR 1200 thousand and
EUR 90 thousand, respectively). These amounts are included into the general and administrative expenses in the
statement of comprehensive income except for the amount of EUR 1,083 thousand in 2019 (EUR 1,122 thousand in
2018), which is included in the cost of sales in the Group's statement of comprehensive income,

As at 31 December 20183 buildings and structures, machinery and equipment of the subsidiary Vydmantai wind park
UAE with a carrying value of EUR 15,859 thousand (EUR 16,941 thousand as at 31 Decembor 2018) are pledged to

tha bank to secure the loans received by the Group (Mote 12).

There were no material fully depreciated property, plant and equipment in the Group and the Company as at

31 December 2012 and 2018,

Right-of-use assets

Group
Office Motor
pramises vehicles Land Total

As at 31 December 2018 - - - £
Reclassified from property, plant and equipment B
as at 1 January 2019 - - 576 576
Capitalised as at 1 January 2019 122 aan - 460
Additions - 370 - 370
Depreciation expense (53) (156) {36) {245)
Write-offs and dispozals Z (59) = (59)
As at 31 December 2019 o 69 493 540 1,102
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Property, plant and equipment and right of use of assets (cont'd)

The Group has leased plots of land on which it operates wind turbines. Those lease armangements wore classified as
finance leases of the land before 1 January 2019. The initial cost of land leased is aqual to the presant value of future
lease paymants. For these purposes the applicable lease period was estimated at 20 years and the discount rate
applied was 4.8%. Depreciation of leasad land is calculated over the minimurn lease period, because the lease pariod
reprasents useful life of leased |and,

Company
Motor vehicles Total

Az at 31 December 2018 - -
Capitalised as at 1 January 2019 303 303
Additions aona 303
Depreciation expensa (135} (135)
Write-offs and disposals (59} (58]
As at 31 December 2019 412 412

The depreciation amounts in respect of Right-of-use assets are included into the general and administrative expenses
in the statement of comprehensive income if the Group and the Gompany, except for the amount of EUR 36 thousand,
which is included in the cost of sales in the Group's statement of comprehensive income.

Interest in a joint venture

As at 31 December 2018 the Company had a 48.99% interest in UAB Alproka, a jointly controllad entity, which was
engaged in the development of real estate projects. A jointly controlled entity was undergoing liguidation process as of
31 December 2019 (also see Note 1), UAB Alproka is a private entity, not listed.

As al 21 December 2019 all equity of UAB Alproka was distributed to its shareholders.

As at 31 As at 31
December December
Joint venture's statement of financial position 2019 2018
Current assets - 170
Mon-current assets - -
Current liahilities - {12
Mon-currant liabilitias - -
Equity - 158
Share of joint venture's equity - 79
Joint venture's revenue and profit
Revenus - 5
Profit {loss) - (27)
Other non-current and current financial assets
Other non-current financial assets:
Group Company
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
Decembear December December December
2018 2018 2018 2018
Mon-currant receivables i4 120 ) i
Mon-current guarantees (deposits) 90 123 - E
Other non-current financial assets 38 32 38 32
147 275 38 32

INTERRAO

LIETUVA

& apw

36




i

‘li 11’

A

11'

k'

7

I

AB INTER RAD LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Other non-current and current financial assets (cont’d)

Prepavmenis:

As al 31 December 2018 prepayments of the Group and the Company included prapayments of EUR 3,360 thousand
related to derivatives {Note 14), there were no such prepayments as at 31 Decomber 2019, Other prepayments consist
mainly of guarantee deposits for clearing house and electricity marke! operator in Poland.,

Other current linancial assets:

As at 31 December 2018 and 2018 other current financial assets of the Group comprised of EUR 1,000 thousand
deposit in Swedbank AB. Monthly deposit with automatic extension is placed and accounted for in current assets.
Deoposit is mandatory guarantee under the credit agreement, which is disclosed under Nota 12,

As at 31 December 2012 the Group and the Company accountad for under other current financial assets security
deposits paid in total amount of EUR 163 and EUR 100 thousand (EUR 270 thousand and EUR 207 thousand as at 3]
December 2018).

Trade receivables

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018 the Group's and the Company’s trade receivables consisted of receivables for
suppliad electricity.

Group Company
As at 31 As at 31 Asat i As at 31
December December December December
2019 2018 2019 2018

Tradae receivables, gross 12,664 11,858 10,250 9,798
Less: allowance for doubtful trade
receivables (B8) (2) (34} -

12,576 11,856 10,216 9,798

As at 31 December 2019 the Group and Gompany had EUR 88 thousand and EUR 34 thousand of doubtful receivables.
As at 31 Decambet 2018 the Group had EUR 2 thousand and the Company had none.

Trade receivables past due but not

impaired e
Trade receivables neither past  Less than 30-60 Maore than
Group due ner impaired 30 days days GO days Total
2019 12,368 142 - 66 12,576
2018 11,741 79 18 20 11,858
Trade raceivables past due but not
impaired
Trade receivables neither past  Less than 30-60 More than
Company due nar impaired 30 days days 60 days Total
2019 10,008 142 - 66 10,216
2018 9,746 50 - 2 9,798

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and ate generally collectible on 2-30 days terms.

Contract assets. Other receivables

As at 31 December 2019 contract assets consist of acorusd income amounting to EUR 992 thousand (EUR 1,120

thousand as al 31 December 2018), which represent camed but not invoiced electricity sales revenues as of the year
end, whole amount is neither due nor impaired

There were no past due other receivables of the Group and the Company as al 31 December 2019 and 2018,
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AB INTER BADO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tumeéno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2018
(all amounts are in ELUR thousand unless otharwise stated)

— 10 Cash and cash equivalents
- Group Company
o Asat3dl Asat31  Asat3i As at 31
=1 December December December December
q 20189 2018 2019 2018

|

Cazh at bank 27,022 20,737 22,584 18,110
- 27,022 20,737 22,584 19,110
oy 11 Reserves
B Legal reserve

Logal reserve is a compulsory reserve under the Lithuanian legislation. Annual transfers of not less than 5% of net
- profit are compulsony until the reserva reaches 10% of the share capital.

Az at 31 December 2019 and 2018 the Company's legal reserve was fully formed.

In 2019 the Company's subsidiary Vydmantai wind park, UAB made a transfer to legal reserve in the amount of
= ELIR 29 thousand, (EUR 79 thousand in 2018).

Cash flow hedge reserve

-
' This reserve represonts the effective part of the change in fair value of the derivative financial instruments (interest rate
= swaps and electricily forward contracts), used by the Group and the Company to secure the cash flows from interesl
. rate and electricity price change risk, at the reporting daia. The reserve is accounted for according fo the requiremenis
of IFRS 9 (Note 14).
=
12 Borrowings
- Az at 31 December the financial debts consist of:
- Group Company
Asat3l Asat31 Asat31 Asat3i
B December December December December
2019 2018 2018 2018
=
i MNon-current borrowings - 3,852 - -
- Current portion of non-current borrowings 3,850 3,300 - -

3,850 7,152 - -

Vydmantai wind park, UAB has loan agreement with Swedbank AB, according lo which all land laase righis, buildings
- and structures, machinery and equipment, funds in bank accounts and 100 % of Vydmantai wind park, UAB shares are
' pledged. Interest rate applied is 6 months EURIBOR + 2.45 %. The loan is denominated in EUR and the final repayment
date is 30 June 2020.

4 Future loan payments under the above mentionad loan contracts as at 31 December 2018 and 2018 are as follows:
wh
Group Company
- Asatdl Asatd1 Asatdl  Asatdd
December December December December

- 2019 2018 2019 2018
= Within one year 3,850 3,300 - -
5 From one to five years + 3,852 - -
an E

2 After five years : . - . _
- Total borrowings ___ 3,850 7,152 - -
;n
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- AB INTER RAQ LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tumeno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUA thousand unless otherwise siated)
Er
- 13 Lease
u The Gompany concluded several lease contracts for vehicles whereas the Group concluded several lease contracts
for vehicles, office premises and land pluts:. The lerms c:llleaﬁe do not include restrictions of the activities of the Group
= and the Company in connection with the dividends, additional borrowings or additional lease agreements. |
: . |
Sel out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:
e ]
) Group Company
=N
As at 1 January 2019 1,111 03
™ Additions 370 303
- Wrile-offs and disposals {59 (59
- Accrelion of interast 41 8
Payments (322) (177)
As at 31 December 2079 1,141 a7h
-} Current 251 130
Mon-current 890 245
-
' The maturity analysis of leaze liabilities is disclosed in Note 24.
J The following are the amounts recognized in profit or loss: |
= Group Company
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assots 245 135
—:; Inlerest expense on lease liahilities H 5
Total amount recognized in profit or loss 2B6 140
The Group and the Company had total cash outflows for leases of EUR 322 thousand and EUR 177 thousand,
- respectively, in 2019,
= Future minimal lease payments under the above mentioned lzase contracts as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are
. as follows:
- Group Company
B As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 Asatal
- December December  December December
2018 2019 2018
2018
R Within one year 290 70 136 -
From one to five years 607 279 250 -
- After live years 466 545 . =
Total lease obligations 1,363 894 386 .
~ Interast (219} {243) (11) -
: Prosent value of lease obligations 1,144 651 375 -
-
Lease obligations are accounted for as:
- - current 251 38 130 -
] - non-current 590 613 245 -
pi
] Lease obligations are denominated in EUR mainly.
-
-
w
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126118813, A Tumeno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
COMNSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUA thousand unless otherwise slated)

14 Derivative financial instruments

Group Company

Asat3l Asat31 Asat3dl  Asat 31
December December December December

2019 2018 2019 2018
Derivative financial instruments, non-current part — assets (hedge) i - - -
Derivative financial instruments, non-current part — assets (non-hedge) - 2 5 -
Derivative financial instruments, current part — assets (hedge) 950 - 950 -
Derivative financial instruments, current part — assets (non-hedge) 729 - a2 -
Accounts receivable for derivative financial instrumenis 425 400 425 400
Derivative financial instruments, non-current part - liabilities (hedge) - {14) - -
Derivative financial instruments, current part - liabilities (hodge) {23) {5,769) - 15,664)
Derivative financial instruments, current part - liabilities (non-hodge) - - = -
Accounts payable for denvative financial instruments (214} - (255} -
Total derivative financial instruments 1,861 {5,383) 1,152  (5,264)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s company Vydmantai wind park, UAB had an interest rate swap
agreement for purpesa of future cash flow hedge on loan (Note 12). On 29 June 2012 the Group has concluded interest
rate swap agreement for the period from 17 July 2012 to 17 October 2020. The Group’s company pays a fixed intorest
rale al 1.65 % and receives a floaling interest rate at 6-month EURIBOR on a notional amount set in the agreement.

In 2019 and 2018, the Company and the Group entered into electricity forward contacts for the purposes of future cash
flow hedge (144,460 mWh and 861,479 mWh, were hedged with forward contracts with maturity within one year as of
the year end 2018 and 2018, respectively).

The fair value of denvalive financial instruments is measured by management at each reporting date, The change in
fair value of the effective part of interest rate swap and electricity forward contracts is recognised in other
comprehensive income and the change in fair value of the non-effective part of interest rate swap and electricity forward
contracts as well as change in fair value or hedging result of other derivative financial instruments not designated as
hedge are recognised directly in finance income (costs) in the statement of comprehensive income.

The fair values of interest rate swap contract designated to hedge interest rate risk and electricity forward contracts of
the Group are presented below:

As at 31 As at 31
December 2018 December 2018

Assets Liabilities Assels Liabilities
Interest rate swap contractl
Fair value (loval 2) - 29 - 118
Electricity forward contracts
Fair value of hedge contracts (level 1) 950 - 3 5,664
Fair value of non-hedge contracts (level 1) 7249 - - =

The fair values of electricity forward contract of the Company aro presented below:

As at 31 As at 31
December 2019 December 2018
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Electricity forward contracts
Fair value of hedge contracts (level 1) 950 - 2 5,664
Fair value of non-hedge contracts (level 1) 3z - - -
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, ATuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2013
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise slated)

Derivative financial Instruments (cont'd)

The following table summarizes amounts recognised in other comprehansive income during the period and in the

linance costs in the statement of comprehensive income;

Group Company
As at 3 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December December December December
2019 2018 2019 2018
Recognised:
Gain (loss) on interest rate swap contract 76 114 4 £
Gain (loss) on electricity forward confracts 18,47 {7,034) 14 280 (12.881)
Recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income
- asrevenue:
Realized part of electricity forward contracts 1248 (1.312) 6,080 (7,225)
designated as hedging instruments
- as financial income (expenses):
Realized part of clectricity forward contracts
not designated as hedging instruments 3,825 56 1,524 56
Unrealized part of electricity forward contracts not
designated as hodging instruments 729 ) o
Recognised in other comprehensive
income:
(zain (loss) on interest rate swap contract
(effective pan) h 114 )
Gain (loss) on electricity forward contracts
(offortive pan) 6,614 (5,778) 6,614 (5,712)
Trade payables
Group Company
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 Asat31
December  December December  December
2019 2018 2019 2018
Fayables to electricity suppliers 26,176 25,653 26,017 25,437
Payables o other suppliers 174 261 146 164
26,250 25,814 26,163 25,601

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are nomally settled on 20-day lerms.

Other current liabilities

Group

Company

As at 31 Asat
December December

As at 31 As at 3
December December

2019 2018 2018 2018
VAT payable 1,610 1,603 1,115 1,215
Employment related liabilities 89 223 T3 200
Other currant liabilities 320 477 54 51
2,029 2,303 1,242 1,466
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LB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 1261719813, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise slaled)

17 Revenue from contracts with customers

18

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Revenus from sales of electricily 311,445 283,913 288,234 240,663
Revenue from produced electricity sales 5,589 4,356 - -
7,034 288,269 288,234 240,663

The increase in revenue of the Group and the Company comparing to 2019 is moestly due to increases in electricity
markel prices and trade volume.

Disaggregation of Revenue from contracts with customers

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Revenue from sales of electricity 1o end users 02,739 63,960 70,685 54135
Hevenue from sales of electricity to power exchange
{excluding equivalant trades on power change) 224,285 204,309 217,549 186,528
317,034 288,260 288,234 240,663
Cost of sales
Group Company
2019 2018 2018 2018
Cost of purchase of clectricity 285 842 260,495 263,885 217,952
Transmission network service cost 4,671 3,009 4,671 3,009
Depreciation on wind park 1.083 1,083 - -
Othel expenses” a7 066 - -
202,573 265,553 268,556 220,961

* Othaor expenses mainly comprise maintenance of wind park and land lease amosdization.

The increase in cost of sales of the Group and the Company comparing to 2019 is mostly due to increase in elactricity
purchase prices and trade volume,
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o AB INTER RAQ LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
, CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
- (all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise statad)
- 19 General and administrative expenses
dj Group Company
= 2019 2018 2019 2018
oy
S Wages, salaries and social security 3,428 2,830 2,944 2,354
n Depreciation and amortization 1,305 1,303 86 a0
) Depreciation and amortization of nghl-ol-use assel 209 z 135 :
= Suppor (charity) 1,423 1,166 1,401 1,144
] Electricity salling expenses 989 744 428 397
_ Consulting services expenses 202 171 202 171
- Transport expenses 200 318 168 305
= Frofessional services cxponses 491 356 3ra 282
- Business trips 165 a8 163 348
- Repair and maintenance 49 41 32 36
- Tax expenses 150 114 105 67
-y Bank services 45 21 26 15
Rent 11 71 3 11
= Trainings and seminars 38 25 35 25
N Reprasentation expenses a5 102 a1 102
> (Reversal of) impairment of investment (Note 1) - - (673) 188
= Other general and administrative expenses 498 487 321 280
= 8,298 7,762 5,843 5,524
- : =
- 20 Finance income and expenses
~ _ Group Company
= 2018 2018 2019 2018
= :
Finance income
- Fair value change of derivatives {non-hedge) 729 - 32 =
Fealised gain on eleclricity forward contracts {non-hedgo) 3,825 200 1,524 200
. Dividends income - = 154 350
! Other ) 113 208 127 190
-y 4 66T 409 1,837 740
v
= Finance expensas
- Expenses related to derivatives (non-hedge) - 144 - 144
Interest expenses 239 304 38 45
o Lease lability interest expenses a6 - 5 -
Other 43 46 41 45
= ais 584 84 234
st Increase in realised gain on electricity forward contracts (non-hedge) of the Group in 2019 relates to significant increase
in volume of trading transactions in electricity commaodities instruments that are accounted for as derivative instruments
. for trading under IFRS 2,
o
=
-
- an
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126118913, A.Tuméno sir. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amiounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

21 Income lax

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018

Components of income tax expenses

Current year income lax expenses 2,825 3,113 2,092 31
Reassessment of income tax for 2018 (798) - (798) -
Deferred income tax expenses (benefit) _ (157) 182 217 (22)
Income tax expenses charged to statement of

comprehensive income 1,870 3,285 1,511 3,089

Reassessment of incomea tax for 2018 was made in 2018 taking into considaration official explanations issued by Tax
Authorities on tax treatment of losses incurred on hedge confracts.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018 the deferred income tax asset and liability was accounted for at 15 % and

consisted of:

A= at 31 As at 31
Group _December 2019 December 2018
Deferred income lax asset
Tax deductible goodwill recognized
upon merger including impairment a) 994 1122
Electricity derivative contracts B - 850
Less: valuation allowance - -
Deferred income tax asset, net of
yaluation allowance 984 1,872
Deferred income tax liability
Equity method - (12)
Intangible assets by) {181) (362)
Electricity derivative contracts (148) -
Depreciation differences 2,119) (2,216)
Gash flow hedge (19) (8)
Fair value change of investment
it 9 (28) (28)
Deferred income tax liability {2,495) (2,626)
Deferred income tax, net {1,501) {654)
Presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
Deferred income tax assel - 3
Deferred income tax Rability 1,501 654
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AB INTER RAD LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Income tax (cont'd)

Comnsn As at 31 As al 3
pany _December 2013 December 2018

Deferred income tax asset

Impairment of investment in joinl

venture and subsidiary (Note 1) - 212

Electricity detivative contracts - 850

Less: valuation allowance s -

Deferred income tax asset, net of

valuation allowance - 1.062

Deferred income tax liability

Fair value changs of investment

property (28) (28)

Electricity derivative contracts {148) -

Deferrad income tax liability {1786) 28}

Deferred income tax, net ) (178) 1,034

Presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

Deferred income tax asset - 1,034

Deferred incoms tax liability 176 -

a) As a result of the merger of Vydmantai wind park, UAB and UAB 1BL Wind in 2012 in accordance with tax legisiation
the Group company Vydmantai wind park, UAB qualifies for recognition of tax deductible goodwill, which may be
amortized per 15 years slarting the merger date, the amount of such goodwill was estimated as EUR 12477
thousand. Difference betweon the tax and financial goodwill created a deferred tax asset (which was as=essed as
recoverable} in the amaount of EUR 1,614 thousand which was recognized in the statement of comprehensive income
upon merger. The change represents amortisation of tax goodwill during the year and impact of financial goodwill
impairment, if any.

b) Due to intangible assets (related to Vydmantai wind park, UAB) identified during the acquisition, a deferred income
tax liability amounting to EUR 1,722 thousand was recognized. The increase in deferred income tax liability in 2019
comparing to 2018 represents amortisation of related intangible assets during 2019,

The changes of temporary differences before and after tax effect in the Group were as lollows:

Recognized in

Balance as al other Balance as at

31 December comprehensive Recognisedin 31 December
Group ) 2018 income profit or loss 2019
Equity mathod {79) . 70 =
Fair values change of investment property (188) = = {188)
Electricity derivative contracts for hedge 5,667 (6.614) (5] {952)
Intangible assets (2,413) - 1,207 (1,2086)
Tax deductible goodwill recognized upon merger 7.480 . (852) 6,628
Depreciation differences (14,773} - 616 (14,157)
Cash flow hedge . {53) (76) - (129)
Total temporary differences (4,359) {6,690) 1,045 {10,004)
Deférred income tax, net (B54) {1,004) 157 (1,501)
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AB INTER RAD LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméne str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2018
(all amounts are in EUA thousand unless otherwisa siated)

Income tax {cont'd)
Recognised in

Balance as at other Balance as at

31 December comprehensive Recognisedin 31 December
Group 2017 income profit or loss 2018
Equity method (92) - 13 (79)
Fair values change of investment propariy - - {188) (188)
Efectricity derivative contracts for hedge {257) 5712 212 5 B67
Intangible assets (3.619) - 1,206 [2,413)
Tax deductible goodwill recognized upon merger 8,338 = (858) 7,480
Depreciation differencas (13.245) - {1,528) (14,773
Cash flow hedge 64 (48) [{22]] (53)
Total temporary differences (8.811) 5,664 (1,212} (4,359)
Deferred income tax, nat {1.322) 850 {182) (654)

The reported amount of income lax expenses attributabla to the year can be reconciled to the amount of income tax
expenses that would resull from applying statutory income lax rate to pre-tax income as follows:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018

Profit (loss) before tax 19,517 14,748 15603 14,698
Income tax expenses computed af 15% 2927 222 2,340 2,205
Reassessment of income tax for 2018 (798) B (798) -
Permanent dilferences ____(259) 1,083 (31) 884
Income tax expenses charged to statement of

comprehensive income 1,870 3,295 1,511 3,089

There is no deferred income tax asset not recognized in financial statements of the Group and the Company as at 31
Decembar 2018 and 2018 with no expiry date.

Basic and diluted earnings per share (EUR)
Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attrbutable to the sharsholders by the weighled
average number of ordinary shares issued and paid during the year. The Group has no diluting instruments; therelore,
basic and diluted earmings per share aro agqual,

Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is presented balow;

Group 2019 2018

Met profit attributable to the shareholders 17,647,000 11,454,000

MNumber of shares, opening balanca _ 20,000,000 20,000,000

Mumber of shares, closing balance 20,000,000 20,000,000
Weighted average number of shares 20,000,000 20,000,000

Basic and diluted earnings per share (EUR) = 0.88 0.57
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AH INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str, 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otharwise stated)

23 Dividends per share (EUR)

24

2019 2018
Company
Approved dividends (EUR) 11,600,000 7,100,000
Number of shares (units)™* 20,000,000 20,000,000
Approved dividends per share (EUR) 0.58 0.36

* The year whan the dividends aro approved.
** Abthe date whaen dividends are approved.

Financial assets and liabilities and risk management
Credit risk

The Group and the Company has a fairly significant concentration of trading counterparties. Trade receivablas fram
the main three customers of the Group and the Company amounted to approximalely 1/3 of the total Group's and
Company's trade receivables as at 31 December 2019 and 2018, The Group's and the Company's procadures are in
force to ensure on a permanent basis that sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit history, which mainly
are the state owned and financially stable private entities, and the majority of transactions is carried out through the
markel intermediary - electricity exchange. Therefore, the Group's and the Company's management considers cradit
risk as immaterial.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of sach financial asset. Therefore,
the Group's and the Company's management considers that its maximum exposura is rellected by the amount of trada
receivables, contract assets and other financial assets loss realisation allowance, recognised at the reporting date, if
any.

Price risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to the electricity price volatility in the market. The risk is mitigated using
forward slectricity purchase or sales contracts to hedgs prices. Majority of forward contracts of the Company do not
result in physical delivery and are designated as cash flow hedges to offset the prica changes (Note 14).

In addition, the Group enters into electricity forward sales and purchase contracts for speculative purposes. Limits for
traders are et to control the risks associated with speculative activity of the Group.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018 the Group had borrowings which were subject to variable rates related to EURIBOR
and created interest rato risk (Mota 12).

As al 31 December 2019 and 2018 the Group manages its interest rate risk by having entered into an intarest rate
swap contract, in which the Group agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the differenco between fixed and variable
rate interest amounts calculated by refarence to an agreed-upon notional principal amount (Note 14),

Liguidlity risk

The Group and the Company manages its business insuch a way which allows avoiding significant increases in working
capital requirements. This is achieved primarily through the thorough management of paymenl dates for elactricity
purchased from suppliers and sold to the clienis, The Group and the Company aims to maintain the longest possible
gap between the dates when it receives the payment for the electricity sold and is obliged to pay for the electricity
purchased. In cases when the Group or the Company forecasts possible increase in the level of required working
capital it has a possibility to take a cradit line from the bank (overdraft agreement for EUR 10,000 thousand out of which
EUR 7,700 thousand were available to the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2019 is valid until March 2020,

The Group and the Company intend to prolong overdraft agreement bafore its expiry date). All the excessive cash is
deposiled in the bank accounts.

The Group's liquidity (current assets / current liabilities) and quick ((current assels —inventory) / current liabilities) rafios
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were 1.35 and 1.02, respectively. The Company's liquidity (current assels / current
liabilities) and quick ((currenl assels — inventary) / current liabilities) ratios as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 wera
.34 and 1.03, respectivaly.
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AB INTER RAD LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2018

{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

24 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (cont'd)

The tables below summatise the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at 31 December 2019 and 2018,

based on contractual undiscounted payments:

On Less than Jto12 1ia5 More than
demand 3 months months years 5 years Total

Mon-current interest bearing
borrawinags, other financial - 920 3,217 510 389 5,038
liahilities and lease obligations
Derivative financial instruments
{liabilities) - 225 18 - - 243
Trade payables = 26,350 - - 2 26,350
Other cument liabilities - 2_ 252 - - - 252
B 131D b

aance iwet 31 December - 27,747 3,235 510 389 31,881
2019

On Less than Jto12 1105 More than
demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
Mon-current interest bearing
borrowings, other financial - 96 2,608 4,192 476 a1g2
liabilities and lease obligations
Derivative financial instruments
{Iiab”“ies':l = 1,442 4,32? 14 - 5,783
Trade payables - 25,814 - - 5 25814
Other current liabilities - 477 - - - ATT
Balance as at 31 December
- 28,649 6,935 4,206 476 40,266

2018

The tables below summanse the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

On Less than Jto12 ita5s More than
demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
Financial lease obligations - 34 102 250 - 384
Trade payables - 26,163 - - - 26,163
Drervative financial instruments
(liabilities) : =5 - = - 239
Cther current labilities = 54 - - - 54_
Balance as at 31 December _ 26,506 102 250 i 26,858
2019
On Less than dto12 1o 5 More than
demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
Trade payables - 25,601 - - - 25,801
Derivative financial instruments
Other current liabilities B - 21 - - - 51
Balance as at 31 December . 27068 4.248 i} i 11,316
2018
INTERRAO ...
LIETUWVA

48




W

._l'

L

R

!

1y

ok

o

% 1

5 ]

AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno sir. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

24 Financial as=ets and liabilities and risk management (cont'd)

Chanae in financial liabilitiss arising from financial activities

Asatl As at 31
December Slgned Change in fair December
Group 2018 contracts® Cash flow value Interests 2019
Man-current 7.150 = {2,533 293 3,850
horrowings
Lease 651 771 {322} 41 1,141
Mon-hedge derivativa B R - e R
Hlability/(asset) =) (72a)
Total 7.801 771 {3.855) (728) 274 4,262,
Az at 3 Asat 3
Decembear Signed Change in fair Decembear
Group 2017 gontracts Cash flow value Interests 2018
Non-cu_:ranl 10,450 b (3,640) 349 7150
borrowings
Lease 691 - (400) - - G651
Cither financial delits 3,785 - (3,807) i2 -
Mon-hedge derdvative = ) )
liability/{assat) (123) T
Total 14,813 - (7.496) 123 361 7,801
As at 31 As at 31
December Signed Change in falr December
Company 2018 contracis® Cash flow value Interests 2019
Lease - 547 {177 . ] ars
MNon-hedge derivative - - : ’
libility/{asset) (32) (32)
Total - 547 (177) (32) 5 343
As at As at 31
December Signed Change in fair December
Caompany 2017 conlracts Cash flow value Interests 2018
Other financial debls 3,755 = [, 807} 12 -
Mon-hedge denvative - x =
liabilityl{assat) (129) e
Total 3,666 - (3.807) 129 12 B -

*includes IFRS 16 adoption effect

Foreign exchangs risk

The Group’s and the Company's business transactions mainly are denominated in eurs, therefore, the Group and the

Company is not exposed to significant foreign exchangs risk.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Group's and the Company's principal financial instruments nol carried at fair value are trade and other

recelvables, contract asscis, trade and other payables, non-currgnt and current borrowings and lease.

The following methads and assumptions are used to estimale the fair value of each class of financial instruments:
{a) The carrying amount of current trade and other accounts recoivable, contract assets, current accounts payable
and current barrowings approximates fair value due to shori coverage periad (level 3);
(b} The fair value of non-current borrowings is based on the guoted market price for the similar issues or on the
currant rates available for borrowings with the same maturity profile (level 2). The fair value of non-current
borrowings with variable interest rates approximates their carrying amounts.

Fair value of the Group's derivative financial instrument (interest rate swap) is defined as level 2 and fair value of
electricity forwards in the Group and the Company are defined as level 1 (Note 14). The interest rate swap is valued
nsing discountsd cash flow or present valim caloulation methnd and pricing is based on market observable inputs.
Electricity forward value is based on markel value.

Thare were no movements of financial instruments between the fair value hierarchy levels during 2018 and 2018
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- AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
. GCONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
. {all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)
=
25 Capital management
- The primary objectives of the Group's and the Company’s capilal management are to ensure that the Group and
the Company comply wilh externally imposed capital requirements and thal the Group and the Company maintain
] healthy capital ratios in order lo supporl the business and to maximize sharehalders' value. The Group's and
Company's capital consists of share capital in the amount of EUR 5.8 million, retained eamings and legal reserve.
=3 The Group and the Company manage capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and tisk characteristics of the activities. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group and tha
" Company may issue new shares, adjust the dividend payment to shareholders and/or return capital to shareholders.
Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes of capital managemeant during the years ended 31
o Decembar 2019 and 2018.
- In addition, companies registered in Lithuania are obliged to upkeep their equity at not less than 50 % of share cagpital,
as jmposed by the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania, As al 31 December 2019 and 2018 the Company
) was in line with this regulation. There were no other externally imposed capital requiremants on the Company and the
= Giroup.
= Group companies registered in Latvia are obliged to keep its equity at no less than zero, as imposed by the Law on
" Companias of the Republic of Latvia. The Group's subsidiary SIA INTER RAQ Latvia did not comply with this
y requirement as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2018, The Group's management does not expect any negative
= consequences fo the Group and beliaves that the losses will be covered from S1A INTER RAO Latvia future profit from
operations.
E
26 Related parly transactions
- Parties are considerad relaled when one party has the possibility to control the olher one or have significant influence

over the other party in making financial and operafing decisions. The relaled parties of the Group are as follows:
Cw PJSC Inter RAD [ultimate parent);
) RAQ Mordic Oy (one of the shareholders);
UAB Scaent Ballic (one of the sharehaldors);

= UAB Alproka (joint venture);
. Othaer ralated parties include:
- UAB Scaent Ballic Group companios (the same shareholder);
Other sharsholders;
e Key Management,
- In addition, the related parties of the Company include the following:

SIA INTER RAO Latvia (subsidiary);
OU INTER RAO Eesti (subsidiary);

- Sp z 0.0 IRL Puolska (subsidiary};
Vydmantai wind park, UAB (subsidiary);

¥ , |
2019

. Declared

= Group Purchases Sales dividands Receivables  Payables

= PJSC Inter RAD a) 256,664 275 - 21 25,338

- Oy RAQ Nardic b) - . 5,916 2 .

¥ UABE Scaent Baltic b) = = 3,364 E =

= Other related parties b) - & - 2320 - -
256,664 275 11,600 21 25,338

g 2018

-~ Declared

4 Group _ Purchases Sales dividends Receivables  Payables

- PJSG Inter RAQ a) 180,434 261 - 25 24,157

= Oy AAD Mordic by - . 3,621 . =

’ LIAE Scaent Baltic by 5 - 2,059 -

1 Other related parties k) - Z 1,420 - -
180,439 261 7,100 25 24,1 57

. .
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d AB INTER RAD LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A Tuméne str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
. CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2013
2 {all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise slated)
E
26 Related party transactions (cont'd)
| a0ig Declared Receivables and
: Purchases Sales dividends prepaymants Payables
"o
8 Company
- PJSC Inter RAO a) 256,664 275 - 21 25,338
) Oy RAQ Nordic : - 54916 . !
rumy UAB Scaent Ballic - 3,364 - -
SIA INTER RAO Latvia c = (288) - 1,956 -
= OU INTER RAD Eesti o) & (869) - 1,178 42
Vydmanital wind park, ) g
= UAB 19 (150} 2
g Other related parties I} = = 2,320
- 256,664 {863) 11,450 3,157 25,380
-1 2018 Declared Receivables and
) __ Purchases Sales dividends prepayments Payables
= Company
] PJSC Inter RAD a) 180,434 261 = 25 24,157
o Oy AAQD Mordic - = 3,621 - -
UAB Scaent Baltic 5 - 2,059 - -
= SIA INTER RAQ Lalvia ) = (3,523) - 1,376 -
z OU INTER RAQ Eesti ) - (2,390) 5 1,123 -
£ A
- Wydmantal wind park,
3 UAB - 14 (350) 2 -
- Other related parlies b) z 5 1,420
= 180,439 (5,633) 6,750 2,526 24,157
= ;
. a) The Group and the Company performs electricily purchase and =ales transactions with PISC Inter RAD,
by In201%2and 2018 the Company paid dividends to other shareholders.
- c) Transactions with subsidiaries mainly represents sales price adjustments for electricity sales to subsidianes
- in Latvia and Estonia made through power exchange (see Note 2.18), assistance in electricity prices hedging,
" and trading through power exchange, as well as short tarm working capital suppaort.

The Company has an agreement with PJSC Inter BAQ, according to which the Company is obliged to buy cerlain
= minimum amount of electricity in 2019.

Fayables and receivables belween related parlies are non-interest bearing. Receivables and payables payment lerms

- between the related parties are up to 15-30 days, except for the dividends and loans, which are repaid in accordance
to the legal or contractual requirements, respectively.

=4 Oulstanding balances al the year-end are unsecured and seftlement ocours in cash, unless agreed otherwise. There
have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivable or payable and no allowance has been

. made for the receivables from related parties by the Group and by the Company. The balances outstanding with related
parties of the Group and the Company were not overdue as at 31 December 2012 and 2018.

= Managament remuneration and other benefits

} The Group's management includes sach of the Group companies managing director, deputy director and director of

- commerce, Amounts of salaries and bonuses calculated during the years 2012 and 2018 for the management of the
Group were EUR 1,208 thousand and EUR 711 thousand, respectively.

- | The Company's management includes managing director, deputy director and director of commerce. Amounts of
salaries and bonuses calculated during the years 2019 and 2018 for the management of the Company were EUR 1,002

- thousand, and EUR 565 thousand, respectively.

= As a result of changes in legistation as from 1 January 2019 social security expenses related to salaries and bonuses

: of the Group companies operating in Lithuania are reportad as part of management remuneration.

- Mo other guarantees were issued to the Group's and Company's management and no other amounts were paid or

3 caleulated and no assets were disposed of.

-
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str, 4, Vilnius, Lithuanig
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

27 Subsequenl events

There were no subsequent events, which could materially influence the financial stalements for the yoar ended as of
31 December 2019,

General Manager _ Giedrius Baltionas J .:”. | 7 February 2020
vl ==
Chiet Accountant ~ __ EditaVagoniene ~ _ ltcie /|| 7 Fobruary 2020
f
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless ﬂﬂErwise stated)

I. General Information

Reporting period
Year ended 315 December 2019

Company and its contact details

Company name AB INTER RAD Lietuva (hereinafter — IRL or ,the Company™)
Company code 126119913

Legal form Public company (joint-stock company)

Date of registration 217 December 2002

MName of register of Legal Entities State Enterprise Centre of Registers

Registered office A Tumeno str. 4, block B, LT-01109 Vilnius

Telephone number +370 5242 11 21

Fax number +370 5242 11 22

E-mail info@interrao. It

Internet address www.interran. It

Main activities of the Group of INTER RAD Lietuva

The Group of INTER RAC Lietuva (hereinafter — "the Group”) is an independent supplier of electricity and, as such, may
engage in varieus forms of electricity trading, Moreover, the Group is also present in electricity generation operations, as
it owns a wind farm in Western Lithuania.

The Group is engaged in various forms of electricity trading: the purchase and sale of electricity under bilateral contracts
with other electricity suppliers, as well as on the power exchange; supply of electricity to end-users; provision of balancing
services for end-users and other wholesalers of electricity; sale and purchase of regulating and balancing electricity for the
transmission system operators; cross-border electricity trading.

The Group has permission to import and export electricity to and from Lithuania, it is engaged in the import of electricity
from Russia and, to a lesser extent, from Belarus, as well as in export to these countries. The Group is also active in cross-
border electricity trading between Lithuania and other EU Member States, namely Latvia and Estonia.

The Group sells all of the electricity it cross-border from the third countries to the Lithuanian internal market on the power
exchange since, in accordance with respective regulations, all electricity cross-border delivered to the Lithuanian internal
clectricity market has to be sold on the power exchange. Then the Group buys the electricity on the power exchange in a
volume corresponding to its contractual obligations with dlients. Sale and purchase orders are submitted for the same
prices and trades are executed at the market price. Some portion of eleciricity is also sold through Nord Pool AS in Lithuania
to other market participants, Trades on the power exchange are executed at the market price.

The price of electricity sold under bilateral contacts is the market price, adjusted for variances depending on the electricity
tracing or consumption pattern of the customer and contractual arrangements (e.q., fixed on annual or manthly basis or
agreed in daily delivery schedules).

Apart from importing electricity, the Group also purchases the electricity from other wholesalers of electricity in Lithuania
and Latvia under bilateral contracts based on various pricing arrangements, as well as on Nord Pool AS in Lithuania, Latvia
and Estonia.

The Group is also present in the electricity trading market in Poland, where it started its operations in 2014 and Is invelved
in buying and selling electricity on the Polish Power Exchange.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tumeéno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated

The Group structure

As on 31% December 2019, the Group consisted of the Company and the following directly controlled subsidiaries and joint

venture {hereinafter - the Group):

Registration
address

Directly and
indirectly
held Equity as
effective at 31t
Company attributable Decembe
Company code interest r 2019
INTER RAQ Eesti 00 - 11879805 100%, 39
subsidiary
SIA INTER RAO Latvia - 40103268639 100% (298)
subsidiary
IEL Polska Sp. z oo - 0000436992 100% 2,983
subsidiary
UAB  Alproka - joint 125281684 49,99% =
venturs (under
liuidation)
Vydmantai Wind Park, 302666616 100% 15,343

UAB - subsidiary

Peterburi tee 47,
Tallinn, Estonia

76 Gustava Zemgala
Ave,, Rioga, Latvia

Twarda 18, 00-105,
Warsaw, Poland

Verkiy  Str.  25C,
Vilnius, Lithuania

A Tuméno Str. 4,
Vilnius, Lithuania

Activity

Trade of
eledricity

Trade af
electriclty

Trade of
electricity

Under liguidation

Generation of
electricity

The following chart sets out the Group’ subsidiaries and interest in those subsidiaries, as well as the structure of the Group:

AB INTER RAD Lietuva

I

IRL Polska INTER RAQ Eesti
Ep.zon ol

[1LH%s directly-owned {1004 direcily-ownead
suhsidiary) stibsidiarngg

SIA INTER RAD

1 100% directy-owned

Latvia

suhsidiang)

UAB Alproka

|
{under liquidation) ‘

(49.99% owned joinl
vanlurdg)

Vydmantai wind
park, UAB

{100 directy-owned
suhsidany)

The Company and the Group does not have any branches or representative offices as of 31 December 2019,
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_ AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
= CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT
FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019

- (all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise sl_ated}l -

- The Group history and development

= 2002 The Company was incorporated as UAB Energijos realizacijos centras.

5 2003 The Company received its license as independent electricity supplier with permission to export
: electricity.

L]

The Company signed sale-purchase agreements with INTER RAD UES and Lietuvos energija AB.

The Company began electricity trading activities by exporting electricity to Russia and Belarus.

= 2004 Permission to import electricity was granted to the Company.
- 2005 The Company began importing electricity to Lithuania,
= RAC Nordic OY, a wholly owned subsidiary of INTER RAD UES, acquired 18% of the Company's
) share capital from UAB VB rizikos kapitalo valdymas.
]
2006 The Company acquired a 49.95% stake in UAB Alproka, a company engaged in real estate
S development in the Lithuanian seaside resort of Palanga.
= 2007 UAB Scaent Baltic acquired an 82% stake in the Company’s share capital from Scaent Holdings
Cooperatie UA and Bengtsbddd Fdrvaltning AB.
=
j 2008 RAO Nordic OY increased its shareholding in the Company by acquiring a 33% stake from UAB
= Scaent Baltic. The stake of RAD Nordic OY in the Company's share capital reaches 51%, while the
stake of UAB Scaent Baltic decreases to 49%,
=
| 2009 The Company signed electricity sale-purchase agreements with the Belarusian company, Belenergo
o and the Latvian company, Latvenergo.
= Cooperation regarding the sale of electricity with the largest electricity consumer in the Baltic States,
= Orlen Lictuva, was established, Delivery was initiated in 2010.
)
= The Company changed its name to UAB INTER RAO Lictuva,
A
- 2010 The Company established two wholly-owned subsidiaries, one in Latvia (SIA INTER RAQ Latvia) and
= the second in Estonia (INTER RAD Eesti OU}.
- SIA INTER RAO Latvia received its license for electricity trading in Latvia.
; 2011 SIA INTER RAO Latvia begins electricity trading operations.
=5
The Company begins trading activities in the Estonian area of NordPool Spot.
-
The Company established a subsidiary UAB TRL Wind and in the same year UAB IRL Wind acquired
o the wind park in Vydmantai.
- The Company begins operations in electricity generation from renewable energy sources by
acquiring the wind park in Vydmantai.
=
The Company signs an agreement with INTER RAO UES on potential export of electricity generated
- in Baltiiskaya NPP under construction in Kaliningrad Oblast.
o 2012 Decision on public offering and listing of the Company's shares on the Warsaw Stock Exchange was
madc.
-
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania

= CONSOLIDATED ANMUAL REPORT
FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
- {all amounts are in EUR thousand unless atherwise stated) ——
= Business entity (IRL POLSKA sp. z 0.0.) in Poland was established.
- 2013 AB INTER RAO Lietuva shareholders decided to distribute 27 million Litas as dividends.

In July 2013, the Company has completed a merger of its two subsidiary companies UAB IRL Wind
and Vydmantai wind park, UAB. Subsidiary companies were reorganised by merging UAB IRL Wind,
which ceased its activities as a legal entity after the merger, into Vydmantai wind park, UAB which
= continued its activities after the merger.

On 4% December 2013, the statutory capital of subsidiary company of AB INTER RAD Lietuva in
Poland IRL Polska Sp.z 0.0, was increased from PLM 2,000 thousand to PLN 10,000 thousand.

2014 On 3™ January 2014, the subsidiary company of AB INTER RAD Listuva in Poland
IRL Polska Sp.z 0.0. was granted the license for trade in electricity in Paland. The term of the license
is from 9th January 2014 till 9th January 2024,

On 30 of April 2014, the General Annual Meeting of shareholders has adopted the decision to pay
dividends to the sharcholders of the Company in the amount of 13 million Litas. |

On 22™ of May 2014, IRL Polska Sp. z 0.0. begins electricity trading operations. |

2015 After Lithuania joined the euro zone, AB INTER BAD Lietuva shareholders fixed a nominal value of
one share 0.29 EUR, share capital equal to 5.8 million EUR.

- AB INTER RAD Lietuva shareholders decided to distribute 11.2 million EUR as dividends.
an 2016 AB INTER RAD Lietuva shareholders decided to distribute 16,1 million EUR as dividends.
= .
2017 On 30" of March 2017 by decision of Supervisory Council The Board of the Company was re-elected

for a new office term of four years.

On 28" of April 2017 new three members of the Supervisory Council, among them one independent
member, were elected at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

. AB INTER RAD Listuva shareholders decided to distribute 10.2 million EUR as dividends.

- 2018 AB INTER RAO Lictuva shareholders decided to distribute 7.1 million EUR as dividends.

- On 6% of November 2018 the decision has been taken to liquidate company’s subsidiary UAB
Alproka™ which has successfully completed a real estate project and all real estate owned by UAB
LAlproka™ has been sold. Therefore, UAB | Alproka" was no longer carrying out any commercial

: activities.
2019 AB INTER RAD Lietuva shareholders decided to distribute 11.6 million EUR as dividends.
= Agreements with intermediaries of public trading in securities
- Since 29Y October 2012 the Company and UAB FM] Orion Securities (code 122033915), A. Tuméno str. 4, LT-01109
. Vilnius, have an agreement on accounting of the Company's securities and services related to the accounting of securities.
-
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Data about securities traded on regulated market

The follewing securities of the Company are included into the Main List of Warsaw stock exchange (symbal: TRL):

Types of shares Mumber of Mominal value Total nominal Issue Code
shares (in EUR) value (in EUR)
Ordinary registered shares 20,000,000 0.29 5,800,000 LT00001268621

In December 2012, the initlal public offering of the Company’s ordinary shares was completed on the Warsaw Stock
Exchange. The total oversubscription for the Company's ordinary shares excesded 26%. Given the ordinary share offer
price of PLM 24.17 the value of the offering exceeded PLN 96.7 million. The Company’s ardinary shares were included into
the Main lisk of the Warsaw Stock Exchange.

Securities of the Group's subsidiaries are not traded publicly.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

II. Financial Information

The Company’s and the Group’s sales In 2019 reached EUR 288.2 million and EUR 317 million. Sales revenue increased
for the Company and for the Group by 19.77% and 9.98% respectively in comparison with the sales revenue in 2018,

Total revenue increased mainly due to the higher volume of electricity sold, mainly in Lithuanian market,

Company's sales revenue in 2019 increased by 19.77 per cent, compared to 2018 due to same reasons — increase in sales
in Lithuanian market.

Electricity price in NordPoolSpot exchange
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During the period of 2019 the Company and the Group delivered electricity to all of its clients and fulfilled all of its
confractual obligations of electricity sales at prices, agreed upon in the contracts. The Company and the Group fulfilled all
of its contractual obligations to its Clients in 2019 without any delays and disturbances and remains as a trusted
counterparty and reliable electricity supplier.

Due to the higher amount of electricity sold in the regional markets, the Company's cost of sales increased by 21.54% and
by 10.17% in the Group, comparing to the year 2018,

The Company's and the Group's EBITDA for the year 2019 was EUR 15.8 million and EUR 22.4 million. Company's EBITDA
margin decreased and amounted to 5.50% in 2019 If compared to 6.32% in 2018 and the Group's — increased from 6.16%
in 2018 to 7.05% in 2019,

During 2019 the Company and the Group fulfilled all of its contractual obiigations ta the Clients, and Groups client’s base
during the course of 2019 decreased: from 1.453 in 2018 to 965 in 2019. The Company and the Group improved
relationships with the largest electricity purchasing customers in the region and suspended electricity retail sale in Paland,

Wind park located in Vydmantai, owned by the Group over a year generated and sold 64 GWh, which was 28,44% more
than in 2018. The increase in electricity production was mainly caused by a better wind conditions = the average wind
specd inthe area in 2019 was 651 mfs compared to 5.86 m/s during 2018,
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019

(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared according to the International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Key figures of IRL Group

Financial figures 2019 2018 2017
Sales [Revenues from contracts

with customers] (EUR thousand) 317,034 288,269 179,378
Gross profit (EUR thousand) 24,461 22,716 18,354
Gross profit margin (%) 7.72% 7.88% 10.23%
Operating profit [profit from operations]

(EUR thousand) 15,163 14,934 10,911
Operating profit margin (%) 4.78% 5.18% 5.08%
EBITDA (EUR thousand) 22,432 17,743 13,537
EBITDA profit margin (%) 7.08%, 6.16% 7.55%
MNet profit (EUR. thousand) 17,647 11,454 8,974
Met profit margin (%) 5.57% 3.97% 5.00%
Number of shares (thousand) 20,000 20,000 20,000
Earnings per share (EUR) 0.B8 0.57 0.45
Financial ratios 2019 2018 2017
Return on capital employed (%) b63% 68% 41%
Return on assets (%) 27% 19% 19%
Return on shareholders” equity (%) 60% 6% S0%
Gearing ratio 017 0.45 0.83
Met financial debt to equity -0.75 -0.74 0.54
Equity to assets ratio 0.45 0.28 0.37
Current ratio 1.35 1.02 1.12
Rate of turnover of assets (%) 21% 21% 27%

Gross profit margin — Gross profit § Sales

Operating profit margin — Opsraling profit / Salas

EBITDA profit margin — EBITDA [ Sales

Profit before taxes margin — Profit before taxes / Sales

Met profit margin - Net profit / Sales

Earnings per shares — MNet profit / Mumber of shares

Retum on capital employed - EBIT / (Tatal assets — Current lizbilities)

Return an assats — Mel profit / Total assets

Relurn on equity — Net profit / Total shareholders’ equity

Gearing ratio — Total debt / Total shareholders” equily

Met financial debt to equity — (Finandal borrowings — Cash and cash equivatents) / Tolal equiby

Equity to assets ratio — Total equity [ Total assets

Current ratlo — Current assels [/ Current liahilities

Rate of turnover of assets — Total assats [ Sales

EBITDA - Profit (loss) before Income Lax + Interest expenses + Depreciation and amortization - Impainnent
These performance indicators are used to determine Group's progress in achieving its strategic and operational goals, and
also to compare Group's finances and performance against other businesses within the industry.

Revenue from contracts with customers/Sales

The total consolidated Group's sales revenue in 2019 was equal to EUR 317 million, a 9.98% more than in 2018. Total
revenue increased due to the higher amount of electricity traded.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.-Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019

{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Sales revenues hy operating segments, thous. EUR 2019 2018
Electricity purchases and sales 311,445 283,914
Electricity production and sales 5,589 4,356
Total 317.034 288,269

Group's revenue from sales of electricity in the 2019 amounted to EUR 311.4 millien. Revenue from produced electricity
sales accounted for EUR 5.6 million, which is a 28.32% maore than the sales a year ago. The increase in electricity
production was mainly caused by the belter wind conditions in the area.

The tables below present data on the electricity sale volumes of the Group for the 2019 and 2018 and the 4% quarter of
2019 and 2018, with a breakdown by each country for the periods indicated (5 - sale).

For 2019 For 2018
s s
G G
Lithuamnia* 6,428 5,315
Poland 1,558 330
Cther countries 553 S0
Total* 8,539 6,235
* Excluding equivalent trades on the power exchange
For the 4™ guarter of 2019 For the 4*" guarter of 2018
] L
Gl G
Lithuania® 1,939 1,600
Poland 425 109
Other countries 131 141
Total* 2,395 1,850

* Excluding equivalent trades on the power exchangs

The average annual eleciricity price in 2019 in Lithuanian Nord Pool Spot zone was equal to 46.08 EUR/MWh compared to
50.00 EUR/MWh in 2018, a 7.84% lower than in 2018.

Cost of sales

The Company’s cost of purchase of electricity in 2019 increased by 21.19% and in the Group increased by 9,77%
respectively if compared to 2018 and amounted to EUR 263.9 million and EUR 285.9 million. Cost of purchase of electricity
increased due to increase of electricity prices in MordPool market and this item constituted 98.26% and 97.73 % of total
cost of sales for the Company and for the Group respectively in 2019.

Transmission network service cost (£.e., input fee) for the Company and for the Group increased due to increased electricity
volumes traded. It amounted to EUR 4.7 million for both - the Company and the Group if compared to EUR 3 million a
year ago.

Gross profit in 2019 stayed at the same level as a year ago and amounted to EUR 18.7 million for the Company and for
the Group Increased by 7.68%;, and amounted to EUR 24.5 million, if compared to EUR 22.7 million in 2018. Gross profit
margin In 20179 increased to 6.83% for the Company and to 7.77% for the Group from 8.19% and 7.88% respectively in
2018, but stayed at the healthy levels.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tumeéno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania

. CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

= FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019

- (all amounts are in EUR thousand unless crmre_m?sc stal:ed}

. General and administrative expenses

g Total general and administrative expenses were higher of the Company and of the Group in 2019 than total general and
administrative expenses a year ago. In the Company it increased by 5.77% and amounted to EUR 5.8 million and in the

= Group it increased by 19.52% and was equal to EUR 9.3 million. The most significant costs’ groups within the general and

_ administrative expanses in the Company and the Group were wages, depreciation and amortization, chatity, electricity
= selling expenses,

T The employment related expenses (wages, salaries and social security) for the Company and for the Group aver the year
increased by 25.06% and 21.13%.

Support (charity) related expenses for the Company and the Group in 2019 increased aver a year and amounted to EUR

- 1.4 million and EUR 1.42 million respectively (a 22.47% and 22.04% increase respectively). The Group constantly supports
various organizations and initiatives as a part of its business mission. Support, provided by the Group, is concentrated on
. three main areas: communities, education and culture/sports.
= Earnings
- Profit from operations for the Company and for the Group for year 2019 were equal to EUR 13.8 million and EUR 152
= million, compared to the profit from operations of EUR 14.2 million and EUR 14.9 millien in 2018. Operating profit margin
-~ for the Company and for the Group was equal to 4.8% and 4.78% compared to 5.83% and 5.18% a year ago.
= Net result from finandial and investing activities for the Company in 2019 was higher than a year ago and amounted to
= EUR 1.8 million. In 2019 subsidiary Vydmantal wind park, UAB paid dividends (EUR 0.15 million, if compared - in 2018
% EUR 0.35 million). Net consolidated result from financial and investing activities for the Group increased to EUR 4.3 million
B if compared to 2018. Overall result for the Group from financial activities was mainly caused by Increase in finance income
= — positive fair value change of derivatives not designated as hedging instruments (EUR 4.7 million) as a result of
- significantly increased derivatives trading activity in 2019 as further disclosed in annual financial statements.
-
As a result, profit before tax for the Company and for the Group in 2019 increased and amounted to EUR 15.6 milllon and
— EUR 18.5 million respectively.
= The net profit of the Company and the Group in 2019 amounted to EUR 14.1 millien and EUR 17.6 million respectively,
_ The net profit margins for the Company and for the Group in 2019 increased and were equal to 4.89% and 5.57%
= (compared to 4.82% and 3.97% year ago).
= Investments
= During 2019 the Group has not made any significant investments.
- Balance sheet and cash flow
- During January-December 2019 total assets of the Company increased by 4.11% and of the Group increased by 5.38%.
1 The most significant influence to the assets was caused by increase of cash and cash equivalents and Derivative financial
e instruments in the Company and in the Group.
.- Total non-current assets of the Company stayed at the same level as a year ago and of the Group decreased by 9.5%,
_ The most significant change in assets in the Group was related to amortization of licenses held by subsidiary Vydmantai
o wind park as well as depreciation of wind power plant. Total non-current assets amounted to 25% of the total assets for
the Company and to 31% of total assets for the Group.
e
During the year, shareholders’ equity of the Company and of the Group increased by 61.12% and 67.37% and amounted
- to 43% of the total equity and liabilities of the Company and to 45% of the total equity and liabilities of the Group. Increase
-4
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are In EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

in equity was mainly caused by changes in cash flow hedge reserve and retained eamnings. Total dividends distributed in
2019 reached EUR 11.6 million.

At the end of December 2019, total amount of borrowings, including financial liabilities refated to finance lease and bank
financing, amounted to 5 million for the Group, if compared to previous year — a 36.04% decrease. The Company had
EUR 0.4 million barrowings if compared to a year ago — there were no borrowings, including financial liabilities related to
finance lease and bank financing. Cash, cash equivalents amounted to EUR 22.6 million for the Company and EUR 27
million for the Group.

Met cash Mow from operating activities for the Company and for the Group in 2019 decreased and ameunted to EUR 15.1
million and EUR 21.7 million respectively {compared to EUR 26.7 million and EUR 30.2 million a year ago).

During 2019 net cash flow from investing and financing activities amounted to negative ELR (11.6) million for the Company
and negative EUR (15.5) million for the Group {compared to negative EUR {10.8) million for the Company and to negative
EUR (14.6) millian far the Group in 2018). Negative cash flow fram financing activities is mainly related to the loans repaid
and paid out dividends.

Information about related party transactions

Parties are considered related when one party has the possibility to contral the other one or have significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operaling decisions. The related partics of the Group are as follows:

PISC Inter RAD (ultimate parent);
- RAD Nordic Oy (one of the sharecholders);
—  UAB Scaent Baltic {one of the shareholders);
SIA INTER RAO Latvia (subsidiary);
—  INTER RAOQ Eesti OU (subsidiary);
— IRL Polska Sp z o.o. (subsidiary);
Vydmantai wind park, UAB (subsidiary);
—  UAB Alproka (joint venture under liquidation);
Other related parties include:
UAB Scaent Baltic Group companies (the same shareholder);
—  Other shareholders;
—  Management.

Detailed information about related party transactions is provided in Note 26 of INTER RAD Lietuva, AB Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st December 2019,

The management of the Company has created an appropriate controlling procedures in the Group that includes ethical
behaviour guidelines, ensures competence in accordance with the duties of the staff, and a clear vision of powers and
responsibilitics; the requirements for reporting and verification intra-group procedures, their monitoring and supervision
in order to response a proper and Lime manner.

To support an effective intermal control system, the Company's management is assisted by PISC Inter RAD internal
auditors, perlodically evaluating the effectiveness of this system. External auditor audits annual financial statements of the
Company and the Group.

Other material information

Mo other material information need to be disclosed.

Subsaquent events

Mo other material subsequent events occurred aftor the balance shesat date.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tumeéno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERTOD ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwisc stated}

Research and development activities

There were no major research and development projects undertaken during 2019, except the on-going development and
improvement of the Group provided services.

Risk management
The main risk factors associated with the activities of the Company are as follows:

- Changes in the regulatory environment.
-  Changes in the price of electricity traded.
- Increase in price of imported electricity.
- Decrease in electricity demand.
Failure to build or delay in building interconnections betwesn electricity grids.
- Discontinuation or unfavourable changes in renewable energy support schemes.
- Decrease in volume of electricity genarated by the wind park.
Increased competition among independent electriciby suppliers,
- Changes in currency exchange rates.

As of 31 December 2019 the total amount of borrowings of the Group amournited to ELIR 4.99 million compared to EUR
7.8 million as of 315 December 2018.

As at 31% December 2019, the Group's fully awned subsidiary (Mydmantai wind park, UAB) had an interest rate swap
agreement for purpose of future cash flow hedge. On 29% June 2012 the Group’s company (IRL Wind, UAB) has concluded
interest rate swap agreement for the period from 179 July 2012 to 17" October 2020, The Group’s company pays a fixed
interest rate at 1.65% and receives a floating interest rate at 6-month EURIBOR on a notional amount set in the agreement.
After the reorganization of UAB IRL Wind and Vydmantal wind park, UAB was completed an 11" July 2013, all the assets
and undertakings, including the interest rate swap agreement, of UAB IRL Wind were taken over by Wydmantai wind parle,
UAB. The notional amount of the transaction after reorganization was increased to EUR 23.3 million.

The Company and the Group's fully owned subsidiary INTER RAQ Eesti OU use derivative instruments for the purpases of
future cash flow hedge. The results of hedging activity is further disclosed in annual financial statements

The Group’s and the Company’s activities expose it to the following financial risks: market risk (including forelgn exchange
risk, and cash flow and interest rate risk), credit risk, liguidity risk. The Group’s policy for treasury management focuses
on the unpredictability of finandal markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects of the financial performance
of the Group.

The Company's financial risk management is carried out by the Company under policies approved by the Management
Board. This unit identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The
Management Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as writken policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, cradit risk and Investing excess liquidity.

The Group's electricity trading Is partially executed based on orders submitted by a team of traders on a daily basis in
response to market conditions, upon consideration of the Group's contractual obligations and market demand. Electricity
trading operations are executed using software provided by the electricity exchange (Nord Pool Spot AS) platform or
platforms of clients/suppliers. In order to mitigate risks associated with electricity trading, the Group has introduced
respective policies to supervise its traders' activity. Namely, cach order for electricity purchase or sale is made by two

employees: one employee inputs trading parameters, whereas the ather (usually the commerdial director) reviows and
confirms them,

Apart from internal risk management procedures, trades made by the Group are checked by its counterparties, the power
exchange and transmission system operators. Electricity trades made through Nord Poal Spot AS are checked by the power
exchange itself for arithmetical accuracy and systematic errors, as well as for unusual activities. Furthermore, each day
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERTOD ENDED 31 December 2019

(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

the Group is obliged to present to the transmission system operator its plan for deliveries of electricity for the following
day. The transmission system operator checks whether the Group is able to deliver the planned volume of electricity and,
if required, checks the availability of balancing services to be provided to the Group. Moreover, each day the Group is
obliged to deliver to the Lithuanian transmission system operator plans for import and export of electricity from/to Russia
or Befarus.

Regarding the management of credit risk, the Group is engaged in credit valuation and constant monitaring of its Clients.
In such activities, the Group uses internally designed software which allows for the collection of information from Clients
and prospective Clients, which is needed to evaluate Client's credit risk.

The Company implemented a process of internal controls. The process of the Company's internal controls implies contral
af business processes related to provision of electricity purchase and sale, and revenue assurance (customers’ settiements
and accounting, development and management of services, services provision), performance of IT systems (customer care
and billing, infrastructure, network information, financial accounting, salary accounting, networks’ interconnection) and
the process of preparation of financial reports.

Plans and forecasts

The Company does not provide any specific plans or forecasts. The Group is engaged in electricity trading and plans
expansion into other countries. The Group operates a wind park located in Vydmantai and plans to further develop activities
in the renewable energy sector,
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- (all amounts are in EUR thousand unless Dﬂ_}EI'WiEE stated) S -
= III. Information about Share Capital and Shareholders
g
o Share Capital
g In the end of 2019 the share capital of the Company amounts to EUR 5,800,000 and consisted of 20,000,000 ordinary
' registered shares with a nominal value EUR 0.29 each. On 20" July 2012, the General Meeting adopted a resolution to
“my increase the share capital from LTL 1,000,000 to LTL 20,000,000, and to divide the share capital into 20,000,000 ordinary
registered shares with a nominal value of LTL 1 each. Such an increase in share capital was made by converting 1,000
o ordinary registered shares of the Company with a nominal value of LTL 1,000 inte 1,000,000 ardinary registered shares
with a nominal value of LTL 1 each, and by issuing 19,000,000 new ordinary registered shares of the Company from the
- retained earnings of the Company. After Lithuania joined the eurg zone, on 30" Aprl 2015 AB INTER RAO Lietuva
i shareholders decided to fix a nominal value of one share 0.29 EUR and share capital equal to 5.8 million EUR. Ordinary
- registered shares of the Company (ISIN code LTO0OD128621) are listed on the Main List of Warsaw Stock Exchange
] {symboal: TEL),
- |
Shareholders
=
As of 31% December 2019 the Company had 5 shareholders whose shares were accounted in Lithuanian securities
g depository system. The shares of remaining shareholders were accounted in Polish securities depository system. Due to
prevailing private information protection laws in Poland, Polish National Depository for Securities is not able to provide the
- Company with information about number of Company’s sharcholders whose shares are accounted in Polish securities
- depository system.
-
Sharcholders, holding more than 5% of the share capital and votes, as of 317 December 2019:
— ]
Name of shareholder Number of ordinary ~ Share of the Share of votes given
= registered shares share by the shares owned
= owned by the capital, % by the right of
=4 shareholder ownership, %
-4 RAO Mordic QY * 10,200,000 51.0 51.0
- UAB Scaent Baltic * 5,822,856 29.11 29.11
— Other shareholders 3,977,144 19.89 19.89
> Total 20,000,000 100.00 100.00
1 — T —
e *In addition, according to Art 26 Part 1 Item 2 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania (agreement on
] implementation of long term management palicy of the issuer), UAB Scaent Baltic indirectly holds voting rights directly
e held of RAQ Nordic Dy, code 1784937-7, address Tammasaarenkatu 1, FIN-D0180, Helsinki, the Republic of Finland, and

of RAQ Nordic Oy indirectly holds vetes of UAB Scaent Baltic under the agreement on implementation of long term
management policy of the issuer between UAB Scaent Baltic and RAD Nordic Oy (hereinafter Shareholders’ agreement).

— As of 31% December 2019, 51% of the outstanding share capital of INTER RAD Lietuva, AB is held directly by RAQ Nordic
- OY, a company organized and existing under the laws of the Republic of Finland, registration number 1784937-7, with its
=2 registered office at Tammasaarenkatu 1, FIN-00180, Helsinki, the Republic of Finland, RAD Nordic OY is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of PISC Inter RAQ, a company incorporated under Russian law, listed on MICEX-RTS under ticker ‘IRACY, PISC

2 Inter RAQ is a diversified energy holding managing assets in Russia, several countries of the CIS and the EU. Its operations
. comprise electric power and heat generation, international power trading and clectric industry engineering.
-
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CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PFRIOD ENDED 31 December 2019

(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

As of 31* December 2019, 29.11% of the outstanding share capital of the Company is held directly by UAB Scaent Baltic,
a company organized and existing under the laws of the Republic of Lithuania, registration number 300661378, with its
registered office at Jogailos str. 9, LT-01116, Vilnius, the Republic of Lithuania. UAB Scaent Baltic increased his stake in
the Company by 0.11% on 13% June 2018, when acquired 22,856 units of Company shares from 100 % subsidiary UAB
East Europe Investment Group.

As of 31* December 2019, free float represents 19.89% of the outstanding share capital,
As at 31 December 2019 the Campany and its subsidiaries did not hold parent company shares,
Disclosure on acquisition of block of voting rights in the Company

On 7th January 2014, the Company made Announcement of the acquisition of block of voting right in the Company. As
of 31st December 2019, the block of vating rights is held by:

ecification of

Number of Mumber of Number of vating rights (%)
shares {units) wioting righits (units)
Directly Diirectly Indirectly Directy Indirecthy
Ordinary reglslered shares 114,971 114,971 5,973,105 0.57 2587
of AB INTER RAD Lickuva
(ISIN code
LTON00128621)
Specifica voting ri irectl Jonas Garbaravicius as 1% Drecem 019 =
The number of shares and voting rights held as of 317 |
Name and other data about the person December 2019
Mumber of Mumber of
Shp:ﬁ;b;:n:;:ﬂ voting rights voting rights
_ funits) (%)
directhy directhy directhy

Vaoting rights held according to the Art 24 Part L Item & of the Law on Securities of the Ropublic of Lithuania (voting rights held by |
the company controlled by Jonas Garbaravicius)

JG Investment Management UAB, code 303049386, address A Tuméng air.

4-3B, Vilnius, the Republic of Lithuaria 43,362 43,362 0.22

Zivilé Garharavidlené (spouse of member of Supervisory Councll of the ]
issuer Jonas Garbaravicius) 8,700 8,700 0.04

managers of the issuer)

Voting rights held according to the Art 24 Part 2 of the Law on Secunifies of the Repubiic of Lithuania {vating rights held by other

Vilma Jurate Balciuniene {spouse of the CED of the [msuer)

44,050

Ad,050

0.22

Vidas Cebatariunas (Management Board member of the issuer)

54,437

54,437

0.2¢

{5 INTERRAO

. st LIETUVA

& cPw

| Voting rights held according to the Art 24 Part 1 Tem 6 of the Law on Secontics of The Rep
the company indirecily controlled by Garbaravicius family)

ublic of Lithuania {voting rights held by |

67



AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119313, A.Tumeno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
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(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

_SEg;Eﬂtatiun of voting rights indirectly held by Jonas Garbaravicius as of 31¥ December 2019

The number of shares and voting rights held as of 31

December 201
Mame and other data about the person Feded

Mumber of Number of |
Mumber of m il
St [L:n?is} voting rights woting rights
{units) (%)
directly directy directiy
LIAB Scaent Raltic, code 300661378, address Jogailos str, 9, Vilnius, te
Republic of Lithuanla 5,822 B5A 5,822,856 29.11

In addition, according to Art 26 Part 1 Ttem 2 of the Law on Securities of the chub]ic of Lithuania (agreament on
implementation of long term management policy of the issuer), Jonas Garbaravicius indirectly holds voting rights directly
held of RAQ Nordie Oy, code 1784937-7, address Tammasaarenkatu 1, FIN-00180, Helsinki, the Republic of Finland, which
concluded the Shareholders’ agreement.

Treasury shares

During the financial year of 2019, the Company has not purchased any treasury (own) stock. As of 31 December 2019,
the Company and its subsidiaries do not hold any treasury stocks of the Company.

Acquisition of treasury shares

For an adoption of a resolution on the acquisition of its own shares, a qualified 3 majority of votes of shareholders
participating at the General Meeting is required. Under Lithuanian law, the Company may acquire its own shares if all of
the following conditions are met: (i) the acquisition of its own shares accurs within a specified period (no longer than
cighteen months) after the adoption of a resolution by the General Meeting which specifies the conditions, purpose and
terms for the acquisition of its own shares, Including the maximum number of shares te be acquired, the manner in which
thess shares may be acquired and the price range within which the shares may be acquired; (i) the total nominal value
of the shares redesmed or taken as collateral does not excecd onc-tenth of the share capital; and (i) after the acquisition
of its own shares, the Company's equity does not fall below the sum of the paid share capital, mandatory reserve and the
reserve for acquisition of own shares; (iv) consideration of redesmed shares are paid from the reserve for acquisition of
its own shares which was formed by the Company; (v) acquired shares are fully paid; (vi) acquisition of its own shares by
the Company ensures equal possibilities for all shareholders to sell their held shares to the Company. Shares that were
acquired infringing the above listed reguirements (i}-(iv) must be sold within twelve months from the acquisition of these
shares. If the shares are not sold during this period, then the corresponding portion of the share capital of the Company
must be annulled. Upon acquisition of its own shares, the Company has no right to exercise property and non-property
rights conferred by such shares.

Shareholders® rights

Mone of the shareholders of the Company have any special controlling rights. Rights of all shareholders are equal. One
ordinary registered share of the Company gives one vote in the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Sharaholders’ agreements

In accordance with the Shareholders’ Agreement (the agreement between RAD Nordic OY and UAB Scaent Baltic), nejther
RAQ MNordic OY, nor UAB Scaent Baltic had the right to sell or otherwise transfer its ordinary shares in the Company or any
part thereof to any third party or create any other third party rights to the Shares or any part thereof, except upon receiving
the prior written consent of RAD Mordic OY and UAB Scaent Baltic.
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FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Under the Shareholders’ Agreement, RAQ Nordic OY and UAB Scaent Baltic have agreed to vote their shares in arder to
elect four candidates nominated by RAQ Nordic OY and one candidate nominated by UAB Scaent Baltic to the supervisory
baard. Under the Shareholders’ Agreement, the shareholders undertook to cause the members of the supervisory board
nominated by them to vote in order to elect two candidates nominated by UAB Scaent Baltic and three candidates
nominated by RAO Nardic OY to the management board. Under the Shareholders’ Agreement, the shareholders undertook
to cause their nominated management board members to vote to elect a candidate nominated by UAB Scaent Baltic for
CEO.

Information about trading in the Company's securities

Information about trading in the Company’s shares an Warsaw stock exchange in 2012-2018:

Year Currency  Opening price  Highest price L::::t Last price h:_ir::ﬂ Turnover
2012 PLM 25.75 26.64 25.75 26.64 26.23 2,862,401
2013 PLN 26.93 31.30 21.01 23.92 27.12 43,529,719
2014 PLN 23.97 24.00 14.50 19.69 19.32 15,620,599
2015 PLM 19.39 19.85 15.00 18.60 17.56 8,650,069
2016 PLN 18.79 20.50 12.80 15.80 16.60 31,008,579
2017 PLM 15.40 15.50 10.81 11.99 12.54 14,889,302
2018 PLN 12.40 13.10 5.24 10.60 10.18 10,317,618
2019 PLN 11.00 15.00 10.80 14,85 12.85 11,550,113

The Company has market making agreement with UAB FM] ORION Securities. On 28 December 2015, additional agreement
between UAB FM] ORION Securities and WSE came into force in order to satisfy new requirements of Liguidity Support
Programime which participant the Company Is.

IRL miarket capitalization as of 31* December 2019 reached PLN 299 million.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Dividends

According to the shareholders’ agreement, RAO Nordic OY and UAB Scaent Baltic shall cause their respective nominees in
the Supervisory Board and Management Board to support the distribution of no less than 70% of the relevant year net
profit as dividends to shareholders.

RAD Mordic OY and LAB Scaent Baltic shall vote their ordinary shares at the General Mesating to ensure such distribution
of the net profit, unless the Management Board, in acting in the best interests of the Company by approving the annual
investment program, decides that the Company should make investments with the relevant year's net profit.

Dividend per share declared by the Company for the financial years ended 31 December 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014
was equal to EUR 0.58, EUR 0.36, EUR 0.51, EUR 0.81, EUR 0.56respectively.

Dividends for 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014 amounted to EUR 11.6 million, EUR 7.1 millien, EUR 10.2 million, EUR
16.1 million, EUR 11.2 million respectively.

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Met profit, mEUR 1161 7.18 10.18 i6.12 11.20
Dividends declared, mEUR 11.6 71 10.2 16.1 11.2
Dividend pay-out ratio 100% 95% 100% 10056 100%

On 20 July 2012 RAD Nordic OY and UAB Scaent Baltic adopted resolution on the increase of the share capital from the
Company's own funds from LTL 1,000,000 to LTL 20,000,000. As a consequence, the net profit for distribution for the
financial year ending 31% December 2012, was reduced by the amount of the share capital increase. After Lithuania joined
the euro zone in 2015, AB INTER RACQ Lietuva sharcholders fixed a nominal value of one share 0.29 EUR, share capital
equal to 5.8 million EUR.
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(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

IV. Corporate Governance

The corporate bodies of the Company are as follows: General Shareholders Meeting, a collegial supervisory body —

Supervisory Councll, a collegial management bedy — Board, and single-person management body — Chief Executive Officer:

Members of Supervisory council

Evgeniya Popova
Chairman of the Supervisory Coundcil
(term: 2016.12.25 — 2020.04.29)

Head of Operational Analysis and Trading Activity Forccasting
Department at PISC Inter RAOD, Legal form/ Pubic joint stock
company Registration codef 1022302933630 Address/ Bolshaya
Firogovskaya ulitsa, 27 buiiding 2, Moscow, Russia, 119435

Education:

Moscow State Institute of International Relations qualification — Finance and Credit, and MBA at
Kingstan University and Academy of National Economy under the Government of the Russian
Federation

Career over the last five years:

2016 — present: Chairman of the Supervisory Council at INTER RAD Listuva

2011 - present: Head of Operational Analysis and Trading Activity Forecasting Department at PISC
Inter RAD

Danielis Klicmanas
m. Member of the Supervisory Council at INTER RAD Lietuva (term:
= 2017.04.28 — 2020.04.29)
L
‘I . CFO at Cgates Group, UAB Legal form/ Private limited liability
company Registration codef F03189324 Address) Uknicrges st

120-1, Vilnius, Lithuania

Education:
Master's degree at Vytautas Magnus University, qualification — Finance and Banking

Career over the last five years:

2017 — present: Member of the Supervisory Council at INTER RAD Lietuva
2015 — present: CFO at Cgates Group, UAB

2003 - 2014: Investment Manager of SEB bank, SEB Venture Capital
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tumeno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithvania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Jonas Garbaravicius

Member of the Supervisory Council at INTER RAO Lietuva
(term: 2016.04.29 - 2020.04.29)

Owner of JG Investment Management, UAB Lega!l form/ Private
limitad liability company Registration code/ 303049785 Address/
A, Tumeno str, 4-38, Vilnius, Lithuania

Education:
Vytautas Magnus University

Career over the last five years:

2018 — present: Counsellor of CEQ at UAB Scaent Baltic, Legal form/ Privale limited liability company
Reagistration code/ 300661375 Address/ Jogailos str. 9, Vilmius, Lithuania

2017 - present: Member at YPO

2013 — present: Owner of JG Investment Management, UAB

2012 - present: Co Founder [ Supporting Shareholder at Children Hospital Support Foundation (Vaiky
Ligoninés Paramos Fondas) v

2013 - present: Co Founder / Supporting Shareholder at Public Organization "Siaurcs Jeruzaleé™ (Nothem
Jerusalem), project LitvakWorld.com

2012 — pressnt: Board member at Vilmius City Opera, Legal form/ Public institution Registration
code/302817107 Address/ Jogaiios str. 9, Vilnius, Lithuania

2012 - present: Member of the Supervisory Coundil at INTER RAD Listuva

2008 — present: Counsellor of CEO at INTER RAD Lietuva

2011 - 2017: Member of the Management Board at Inter Green Renewables and Trading

Rytis Davidovitius
Member of the Supervisory Council
r—— (term: 2016.04.29 — 2020.04.29)
CEQ at BRAITIN, Legal form/ Private limited [iability company

s ' Registration code/ 303422006 Address) A, Tumeno str. 4, Vilnius,
ﬂ Lithuania

Education:

Bachelor degree, History and Political science at VWytautas Magnus University

Master degree, Sports Management at Real Madrid Graduate School, Universidad Eurcpea
Executive Education, Strategy at INSEAD, Columbia Business Schoal

Licence of consultant, Bank of Lithuania

Career over the last five years:

2019-present: CEO and Member of the board at BRATTIN

2017- 2019: Director of Business Development, Lewben Group

2016 - present; Member of the Supervisory Council at INTER RAO Lietuva

2016- 2017: Director of Asia Pacific, Lewben Group;

2013- present: President, Lithuanian Rugby Fedcration, Legal form/Association  Registration
code/190773236  Address/ Zemaites str. 6, Vilnius, Lithuania

2013 - 2016: CEQ, IG Investment Management UAB, Lithuania;

2014 — 2016: Adviser of the Chairman of the Board, Orion Asset Management UAB, Lithuania.

2011 — 2014: CEQ, Orion Asset Management UAB, Lithuania.
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AB INTER RAD LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

S Vasily Kulikov
{ Member of the Supervisory Council
3 ; (term: 2016.04.29 — 2020.04.29)

Inter RAC Leqgal formf Public joint stock company Registration
codef 1022302933630 Address) Solshaya Pirogovskaya witsa, 27
buiiding 2, Moscow, Russia, 119435

‘ Head of Risk management and internal control department PISC

Education:
Bachelor degree in Management at Non —State Educational Institution Modern University for the
Humanities

Career over the last five years:

2016 — present: Member of the Supervisory Council at INTER RAO Lietuva

2014 — present; Head of Risk management and internal control department PISC Inter RAD
2012 — 2014; Head of audit procurement activity department 35T Inter RAD Electrc Power Plants
2010 —2012: Head of audit procurement activity department 15C Inter RAD UES

Victor Kolotievskiy

E] Member of the Supervisory Council at INTER RAD Lietuva (term:
: g‘i 2017.04.28 — 2020.04.29)
=

Head of European Operations of the Trading Unit of PISC Inter
RAD Legal form/ Public joint stock company Registration code/
1022302933630 Address{ Bolshaya Plogovskaya ulitsa, 27
buiding 2, Moscow, Russia, 119435

Education:

Mational Research University "Moscow Power Engineering Institute” qualification — Engineer-Manager
The Moscow University of Finance and Law, gualification — Lawyer

Career over the last five years:

2017 — present: Member of the Supervisory Council at INTER RAQ Lictuva
2012- present: Head of European Operations of the Trading Unit of PISC Inter RAD
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019

(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Members of the Board

Alexandra Panina

Chairman of the Management Board at INTER RAD Lietuva
(term: 2018.07.06 —2021.03.30)

Member of the Management Board, Acting Head of the Trading
Unit of PISC Inter RAQ Legal formy Pulilic joint stock company
Registration code/ 1022302933630 Address/ Bolshaya
Pirogovakaya ulitsa, 27 building 2, Moscow, Russia, 119435

Education:
Law faculty of Volgograd state University
State Academy of Innovation

Career over the last five years:

2018 — present; Chairman of the Management Board at INTER RAO Lietuva

2018 — present: Member of the Management Board, Interim Head of the Trading Division, PISC Inter
RAD

2018 - 2018: Deputy Head of Exports Division, Division Management Block, PISC Inter RAD

2011 - 2018: Vice President of Marketing and Sales, LLC INTER RAQ — Management of Electric Power
Plants

Evgeny Miroshnichenko

Member of the Board at INTER RAD Lietuva

{term: 2017.06.06 -2021.03.30)

Member of the Management Board, Chief Financial Officer,
PISC Inter RAD, Legal form) Public joint stock company
Registration code/ 1022302973630 Address/ Bolshaya
Firagovskaya wlitss, 27 buflding 2, Moscow, Russid, 119435

ol >

Education:
State University of Management

Career over the last five years:

2017 - present: Member of the Management Board at INTER RAD Listuva

2017 — present: Member of the Management Board, Chief Financial Officer, PISC Inter RAD

2010 — 2016: Director of Strategic Development with the Strategy and Investments Unit, Deputy Head
of the Unit, Head of the Strategy Department of the Strategy and Investments Unit, PISC Inter RAD
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

- Evgeny Sarymsakov
i Member of the Board
4:'1,‘ (term: 2018.07.16 — 2021.03.30)
Head of International Law Department of Legal Affairs Unit
of PISC Inter RAQ, Legal form) Public foint stock company

Registration codef 1022302233630 Address! Solshaya
Firogovskaya ulitea, 27 building 2, Moscow, Russia, 119435

Education:
Master's Degree at Moscow State Institute of International Relations, qualification = International
Law

Career over the last five years:

2018 — present: Member of the Management Board at INTER RAQ Lietuva

2017 — 2018: Member of the Supervisory Council at INTER RAD Lietuva

2012 — present: Head of International Law Department of Legal Affalrs Unit of PISC Inter RAD

Giedrius Bal€iliinas

Member of the Management Board at INTER RAO Lictuva
(term: 2017.03.30 -2021.03.30)

Director General (CEQ) at INTER RAQ Lictuva, Legal form/
Public limited lizbility company Registration code/ 125119913
Address/ A. Tumeno str. 4, Vilnivs, Lithuania

Career over the last five years:

2012 — present: Member of the Management Board at INTER RAO Lietuva

2010 — present: Member of the Management Board at INTER RAQ Eesti OU, Legal form/ Private limited
company Registration code/ 11879805 Address/ Peterburi tee str. 47- 206, Tallinn aly, Haru courmty,
11415, Esfomia

2006 — 2018: Member of the Management Board at Alproka
2003 - present: Director General (CEO) at INTER RAO Lietuva
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are In EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Vidas Cebatarilinas

Member of the Management Board at INTER RAD Lietuva
(term: 2017.03.30 —2021.03.30)

Director of Cammerce of AB INTER RAO Lictuva, Legal form/
Public limited lability company Registration code/ 125119913
Address) 4. Tumeno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania

Education:
Master of Economic Analysis and Planning awarded by Vilnius University

Career over the last five years:

2012 - present: Member of the Management Board at IRL Polska, Legal form/ Private limited liability
campany Registration code/ 458548, REGON number 14635508, NIP number 5252539965 Address/
Twards street 18, Warsaw, Poland

2012 — present: Chairman-of the Management Board at SIA INTER RAO Latvia, Legal form/ Limited
liability company Registration code/ 407103268639 Address/ Gustava Zemgala gatve 76, Riga, LV-1039,
Latwia

2010 — present: Member of the Management Board at INTER RAQ Eesti OU, Legal form/ Private limited
company Registration code/ 11879805 address/ Peterbur tee str. 47- 208, Tallinn clly, Harju county,
11445, Estarva

2010 - 2013; Member of the Management Board at Scaent Baltic
2007 — present: Member of the Management Board at INTER RAO Lictuva
2005 — present: Director of Commerce at INTER RAQ Lietuva

CEO

The chief executive officer of the company is Giedrius Balcilinas. Term in the position: 2003.05.21 — unlimited
Chief accountant

Chief accountant of the Company is Edita Vagonieng. Term in the position: 2012.10.01 - unlimited

Audit committee

The Company has formed an audit committee. On 6" of June 2017 the new members of committee were elected. The

term of the Audit committee members will end in April 2020.

The members of the audit committee are the following: Mr Danielis Klicmanas, Mr Victor Kolotievskiy and Mr Vasily Kulikov.

On 23 March 2018 Mr. Daniells Klicmanas was elected Chairman of Audit committe=.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019

(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Holdings in the Company by members of governing bodies, administration, and audit committee

Table below presents information about number of shares held in the Company by members of governing bodies,
administration:

Indirectly held

Mame, surname Directly held shares shares Taotal
% of % of
Mo. of %o of total Mo. of total Mo. of total
shares equity shares equity shares equity

Evgeniya Popova _ N

Jonas Garbaravicius®* 114,971 0.57% 5,973,405  29.87% 6,088,376  30.44%

Supervisory  Rytis Davidovicius
board Vasily Kulikowv

Victor Kolotievskiy

Alexandra Panina
Evgeny Sary?ﬁa'lzﬂj.ﬂ
Management Evgeny
board Mirashnichenko o
Gledrius Baldionas 0.00% 44,050 0.22% 44,050 0.22%
Vidas Cebatariiinas 54,437 0. 27% 0.00% 54,437 _1]_.1'_?%
Giedrius Baltitinas,
Administratio  CEO 0.00% 44,050 0.22% 44,050 0.22%
n " Edita Vagonieng, chisf
accountant
* _ more spedfic Information about shares heid by Jonas Garbaravitius can be found on the section *Tnformation about Share Capital and
Shareholders” of this report.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Remuneration of the members of the governing bodies, CEOQ and Chief accountant of the Company

During 2019 in total EUR 0.948 million was paid as salaries for the members of governing bodies and administration.
Except for remuneration, there have been no other sums transferred by the Company to the members of governing bodies

and administration. More detailed information regarding remuneration paid (net of related taxes) is presented in the table
below.

Remuneration, EUR

All members of the Supervisory Board collectively 23,352
Per member of the Supervisory Board on average 38,456
_All members of the Board collactively 541,338
Per member of the Board on average 108,268
* All members of administration (CEO and chief accountant) 306,810
* Per member of administration on average B 153,405

Important agreements

The Company has not entered into any material contracts which would come into validity, change, or expire after the
change in the control of the Company.

The Company has not entered into any agreements with the members of the governing bodies, committess or employees
regarding compensation in case members or employees resign, are fired without reasonable cause or their employment
ceases due to change in control of the Company.

Harmful transactions

During the reporting pericd there have been no any transactions performed on behalf of the Company which were harmful
{not complying with the goals of the Company, usual market practices, conflicting with the interests of shareholders etc.),
had or could have In the future any negative influence for the activities or financial results of the Company.

According to the knowledge of the Company, during the reporting period there have been no any transactions made by
the management, controlling shareholders or any other parties related to the Company which resulted in the private —
corporate conflicts of interest,

Auditors

The Censolidated Financial Statements presented in the annual report were audited by UAB Ernst & Young Baltic (license
Mo. 001335), with its seat at Subaciaus 7, LT-01127 Vilnius, Lithuania. Ms Inga Gudinaite {auditor license No, 000366) is
the signatory of the independent auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements, a member of the Lithuanian
Chamber of Auditors.

Social Responsibility

The Group constantly supports various organizations and initiatives as a part of its business mission. For the financial years
ended 31% December 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016 and 2015 the Group spent EUR 1.42 million, EUR 1.17 million, EUR 1.18
million, EUR 1.15 million, and EUR 1.17 million, respectively, on charity and other support, These costs represent Group's
corporate values and culture to support and contribute to the overall social welfare. Support, provided by the Group, is
concentrated on three areas: communities, education and culture, sports. While confributing to the sodal communities the
Group donates to orphanages, hospitals, churches and various other charity and support organizations. When sponsoring
culture and education spheres, the Group supports universities, schools, theatres, orchestras and wvarious other
organizations and events. Sports sponsorship started at the very beginning of the company’s activities, the main attention
is pald to basketball, soccer, car races, tennis and vatious other sports organizations and events.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Environment mathaers

The Group Uses the most innovative means and the most modern technological processes that meet ecological standards.
In addition, the Group owns wind park located in Vydmantai, which produces eco-friendly electricity.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tumeno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLTIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERTOD ENDED 31 December 2019
(all amounts are in EUR thousand unless atherwise stated)

V. Personnel

The table below presents the Company’s data on the headcount of employees divided into categories, In the periods
indicated.

Az of 317 Dacember

2019 2018

Manauemenl

Sales Managers, including Traders
PR & Marketing Stafl

Project managers

Technical staff

Office Staff

= B s =+

X
B == - R &

Total 24

The table below presents the Company’s data on the employee related expenses divided into employee categories, for the
period indicated.

As of 31* December 2019

Headcount Expenses, EUR million
Management 8 1.685
Sales Managers, including Traders B 0.451
PR B Marketing Staff 1 0.061
Project managers 1 0.029
Technical staff 1 0.019
Dffice Staff r 0.49%

Total 24 2.944

On 31% December 2019 24 employess were employed in the Company. Company's personnel consisted of 8 managers and
16 sperialists. Average annual employment expenses per employee in 201% amounted to EUR 240 thousand for managers
and EUR 66 thousand for specialists.
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AB INTER RAQ LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
il CONSOLIDATED ANMUAL REPORT
FOR THE 12 MONTH PERTIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
4 (all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)
| The table below presents the Group's data on the headcount of employees divided into categories, in the periods indicated.
o As of 31* Decembar
= 2019 2018
A —
Management 8 B
4 Sales Managers, including Traders 12 14
=1 PR & Marketing Staff 1 1
- Project managers 2 2
= Technical staff 3 3
;‘ Office Staff 13 J.E
Total 39 40
i*
- The table below presents the Group's data on the employee related expenses divided into employee categories, for the
J eriod indicated.
) P
As of 31 December 2019
o _
= Headcount Expenses, EUR million
A
- Management 8 1.685
A Sales Managers, Including Traders 12 0.720
= PR & Marketing Staff 1 0.081
Project managers 2 0.041
5 Technical staff 3 0.044
) Office Staff 13 0.677
- Total 3 39 3.428
=)
Onee grouped by broad categories, on 31% December 2019 Group's personnel consisted of 8 managers and 31 specialists.
A Average employment expenses per employee in 2019 amounted to EUR 240 thousand for managers and EUR 48 thousand
for specialists.
4
As of 312 December 2019, 31 of the Group's employees were employed in Lithuania, 4 were employed in Latvia, 2 were
E employed in Estonia and 2 were employed in Poland,
- The Group recognizes the importance of its staff in operating a stable and efficlent business, and in providing the highest
level of customer service and, accordingly, the Group strives to recruit, train, reward and retain only the best personnel.
2 The Group usually introduces a remuneration system comprised of a standard gross salary, paid monthly, as well as
o bonuses, based on the discretionary decision of the Management,
) There are no trade unions or workers councils registered in the Group Companies. There are no collective bargaining
agresments concluded in the Group companies.
= ; .
As of 31% December 2019, the Group's employees, except for Mr Jonas Garbaravicius, Mr Giedrius Balditnas, Mr Vidas
= Cebatariinas, Mr Saulius Garbaravitius, Mr Nerfjus VeikZa, Mr Paulius Vazniokas, Mr Edvardas Vaigéla, Mr Edvardas
Norkelilinas and Ms Loreta Serbwybyté do not have any direct or indirect shareholdings in the Company, do not hold any
- stock options or other rights to the Shares and do not participate in any other way in the capital of the Company. There
ale ho arrangements relating to such participation.
o
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019

{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Sanior Management

In the opinion of the Company’s management, except for members of the Company's corporate bodies, the following
persons are the maost important for the Group (herein after the "Senior Management™):

Name Position/Function
Paulius Vazniokas Economic Director
Aiskte Vaitaityte Deputy CEO
Edvardas Vazgéla Electricity Trading Development Director
Merfjus Velksa Legal Department Director
Saulius Garbaravicius Chief Corporate Communication Officer

The business address of the members of the Senior Management is the Company's principal place of business at A. Tumeno
4, Vilnius, Lithuania.

Paulius Vazniokas has been the Economic Director of the Company since 2007, He currently holds several positions in
the Group Companies. Since 2007, Mr Vazniokas has also sat on the management board of UAB Scaent Baltic. He also
holds various positions in companies from UAB Scaent Baltic’s group. Before joining the Group, Mr Vazmiokas gained
cxpericnce as; Head of Commercial Real Estate Department in Kaunas branch of Ober Haus UAB (2000-2002), Real Estate
Project Manager and Director at AB Panevéfio kelial group (2002-2004), as well as a CFO and Head of Administration at
UAB Realtus {2004-2007).

Mr Vazniokas holds Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Vytautas Magnus University, which he obtained in
2000. In 2002 he obtained Master's degree in Finance and Banking from Vytautas Magnus University. Mr Vazniokas also
obtained Ph. D. degree in Economics from Vytautas Magnus University in 2011, Since 2007, he has lectured at Vytautas
Magnus University, Mr Vazniokas also studied law at Vilnius University (2002-2006).

Aista Vaitaityté has been the Depubty CEOQ of the Company since 1 June 2005. She has been associated with the Group
since 2003 and, before becoming the Deputy CEO, Ms Vaitaityte held position of Head of Information Analysis and
Transmission Division.

Ms Vaitaityta holds Master's degree in Law and Management from Mykolas Romeris University, which she obtained in 2003.
In 2000 Ms Vaitaityte obtained Bachelor's degree in Sodal sciences from Lithuanian University of Educational Sciences.

Edvardas VaZgéla has been the Electricity Trading Development Director of the Company since 2012, Before joining the
Group, Mr VaZgéla had, for over 20 years, been associated with Listuvos energija AB, working as: Leading Engineer (1991-
1993), Energy Matketing Services Manager (1993-1996), Energy Trading Centre Director (1996-2001), Electricity Market
Department Director (2001-2002) and Wholesale Electricity Trading Department Director (2010-2011). Moreover, in years
1977-1991 Mr Vaigola worked for Lithuanian Mational Energy System, first as an Enginear Inspector and later as an
Electrical Inspection Chief.

Mr \Wazgéla graduated from the Kaunas Polytechnic Tnstitute In 1977 with specialization in electricity enginecring. His
education also Includes various courses in the fields of eleciricity and encrgy.

MNerijus Veik3a has been the Legal Department Director of the Company since 2007, His past professional experience
includes posts of: Director at Mational Association of Business Administrators {2002-2003), Assistant General Director at
Kauno termofikacing elektring (2003-2008), lawyer at UAB Creditum (2007), General Director at UAB Scaent Baltic Energy
(2007-2009), Member of the supervisory board at OMX Baltic Benchmark Fund and Member of the management board at
UAB SC Baltic Media (2009-2012), Member of the management board at LUAB Scaent Baltic (2013-2015).
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tumeéno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

Mr Veik3a holds Master's degree in International Commercial Law from the Law Faculty of Vytautas Magnus University,
which he obtained in 2002, In 1999, he also obtained Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Vytautas Magnus
University.

Saulius Garbaravidius has been Chief Corporate Communication Officer since 2013, Since 2013 Mr Garbaravidius is a
Member of the Board at Oxygen Venture Capital, since 2014 he is a Member/Chairman of the Board at Orion Asset
Management, UAB, since the year 2016 is CEO at Rigel Capital Partners Ltd and since 2016 is CEO at Onvestor Advisory
Limited His past professional experience includes posts of: CEO at Orion Managing Partners B.V.. (2016-2018), Partner at
CEE Resources&Investments LLP (2013-2014), Member of the Board at UAB "Scaent Baltic” (2007-2013), Chairman of the
Board at UAB “SC Baltic Media” (2008-2013), CEQ at UAB “Franchise Media" (2008-2011), CEO at UAB "Intelligent Media®
(2009-2010).

Mr Garbaravidius holds Bachelor's degree in Philosophy from Vytautas Magnus University.
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AB INTER RAO LIETUVA, Company code 126119913, A.Tuméno str. 4, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

FOR THE 12 MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 December 2019
{all amounts are in EUR thousand unless otherwise stated)

VI. Statement on Corporate Governance

6.1, Statement on compliance with the BEST PRACTICE FOR WSE LISTED COMPANIES

The Company hereby informs about the Company's partial non-compliance with the Best Practice for GPW Listed
Companies 2016. The Best Practice for GPW Listed Companies 2016 can be found on the website dedicated to the
corporate governance at the Warsaw Stock Exchange: www.corp-gov.gpw.pl and on the corporate website:
www . interrac.t in the section "For Investors™.

The Company acknowledges the importance of the good corporate governance and intends to apply Best Practice for
GPW Listed Companies 2016 as wide as is practicable. However, due to, inter alia, differences between Polish and
Lithuanian Corporate Law the Company will not comply with the following rules:

— L.R.2. according te which, If the Company pursues sponsorship, charity or other similar activities, then the Company
should publish the information ahout the retevant policy. While the Company continuously supports sport, culture and
education as well as social initiatives as a part of its business mission, it does not consider it practicable to adopt the
relevant policy on its activity within these spheres.

— LZ1.3. and I1L.Z.1, according to which the Company must publish a chart showing the division of duties and
responsibilities among members of the management board. Under Lithuanian Corporate Law, the management board
functions and responsibilities are not required to be divided among management board members.

—  LZ.1.6. according to which information on the dates of corporate events leading to the acquisition of limitation of
rights of @ shareholder, information on the dates of publication of financial reports and aother events relevant to
investors must be provided in the Company’s website. The Company considers providing such information to investars,

- 12111, according to which the Company should publish on its website information about the content of the
Company’s internal rule of changing the company authorised to audit financial statements or information about the
absence of such rule. According to Lithuanian law, the audit firm is selected by the annual general meeting of the
Company's shareholders (the "Annual General Meeting") to perform the audit of annual financial statements. The
Supervisory Board, the Management Board and the shareholders having at least 1/20 of votes may at any lime prior
to or during the Annual General Meeting suggest in writing or by means of electronic communication the audit firm,
therefore such rule is not required and the Company has not adopted any rules regarding the issue.

— 1.Z.1.14, according to which the Company should publish on its website materials provided to the general meeting
(also I1.Z.10 according to which the Supervisory Board prepares and presents to the General Meeting a report and
assessment of the Company's standing, including an evaluation of the internal control, risk management and
compliance systems and the internal audit functions and ILZ.11 according to which the Supervisory Board should
issUe opinions on issues decided by the General Meeting). The Company only partially complies with this principle, as
according to Lithuanian law, the Supervisory Board is not required to draw up such an assessment or report or issue
such opinians.

—  L.Z.1.15. according to which information about the company's diversity policy applicable to the governing bodies and
key managers should be publish on its website. Even though there is no such policy in the Company established, the
Company puts its best efforts to comply with general principals, Also a diverse amang others in terms of gender is
ensured as currently, there are two women in governing bodies of the Company, Mrs Alexandra Panina, is the
chairwoman of the Management Board and Ms Evaeniya Popova on 29 April 2016 was elected to Supervisory Board
of the Company and she is the chairwoman of the Supervisory Board.

I1.Z.3 and IL.Z.4, I11.Z.7 and 11.7.8 according to which at least two members of the Supervisory Board and the chair
of the audit committee should meet the criteria of being independent from the Company. As of the date of this report
a member of the Supervisory Board and a Chairman of the Audit Committee Mr Danielis Klicmanas meets criteria of
being independent. The Company is putting its best efforts to comply with this principle.

- .71, NLZ.2, HLZ3, TILZ4, TILZ.5 and 11l £.6 according to which the management board of the company should
be responsible for implementation and maintenance of efficient internal control, risk management, compliance systems
and internal audit functions and establish rules applicable to implementation of these functions. Under Lithuanian
Corporate Law, the management board is not responsible for these functions and no separate units have to be
established in the company for this purpose, The Audit Committes is established in the Company which supervises
antl considers accounting, intermnal conbrol and risk management, as well as audiling activities of Lhe Company,
perfarms an Independent and unbiased supervision of the audit,
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IV.R.2. and IV.Z.2 (also 1.Z.1.16) according to which the Company should enable its shareholders to participate in a
General Meeting using electronic communication means through real-life broadeast of General Meetings and real-time
bilateral communication where shareholders may take the floor during a General Meeting from a location other than
the General Meeting and enable its shareholders to exercise the voting right during a General Meeting either in person
or through a plenipotentiary. The Company does nat enable participation in the General Meeting by using electronic
communication means through real-life broadcast and real-time bilateral communication. However, the Company does
not exclude that such means will be adopted in the future. Also the Company does not comply with 1.Z.1.20 according
to which the Company should make audio or video recording of a general meetings public as no such recordings are
required under Lithuanian Corporate Law.

— M.Z5 according to which the Supervisory Board should approve a significant transactionfagreement with a
shareholder who holds at least 5% of the total vote in the company or with related party at the request of the
Company's Management Board. In accordance with Lithuanian Corporate Law, Supervisory Board must approve anly
those transactions with the company’s related parties, which are 1) concduded not on usual market terms, and/or 2)
not attributable to company’s usual economic activity, and/or 3) have material effect on the company, its finances,
assets, obligations. Supervisory Board approval is not required for transactions with related parties concluded in course
of company’s usual economic. In 2019, the Company did not enter into any related party transactions that would
require the approval of the Supervisory Board under Lithuanian law,

VI Section according to which the Company should have a remuneration policy and comply with the rules of defining
and implementing the policy as described therein. The Company has not adopted such policy, since the Company's

Group s developing and the number of employeas and members of management do not justify implementation of a
complex set of rules.

6.2.Description of the procedures of the General Meeting and its main powers and the rights
of the shareholders and procedures of their execution

6.2.1. Procedures of the General Meeting

The General Meeting is the supreme corporate body of the Company. Procedures and powers of the General Meeting of
Shareholders are regulated in the Articles of Association and specified in the Lithuanian Company Law.

The Company must hold at least one Annual General Meeting within four months of the end of the financial year. The
Annual General Meeting, among other things, is entitled to resolve important corporate matters, such as any amendments
to the Articles of Association, any increase and reduction of the share capital of the Company, clection and removal of
members of the Supervisory Board, selection and removal of the audit firm, approval of the annual finandial statements
and interim financial statements, adoption of a decision an the distribution of profit, dissolution, merger or transformation
of the Company, and certain other matters.

The right of initiative to convene the General Mecting is vested in the Supervisory Board, the Management Board and any
shareholders holding at least 1/10 of all votes.

The agenda of the General Meeting shall be prepared by the Management Board or CEQ (if the General Meeting is convened
by him/her). The General Meeting shall have no right to adopt decisions on Issues not announced in the agenda, except
when all shareholders with vating rights participate in the General Meeting and no one of them has voted in writing.

The agenda of the General Meeting may be supplemented based on suggestions of the Supervisary Board, the Management
Board and any shareholder holding at least 1/20 of all votes, as long as the suggestion is received not later than 14
calendar days prior to the General Meeting. Such suggestion shall be submitted in writing or by means of electronic
communication, together with draft decisions, or when no decisions must be adopted, explanations on each of the
suggested agenda items shall be submitted.

Shareholders have the right to ask guestions regarding items on the agenda of the General Meeting in advance. Under
Lithuanian law, the Company is obliged to answer these questions before the General Meeting, provided that the questions
were received by the Company not later than 3 business days prior to the General Meeting. If several questions of identical
content are submitted, the Company may respond with a single answer.
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If the General Mesting is not held due to absence of a quorum (shareholders that have more than half of all votes and
participate at the General Meeting constitute @ quorum}, a repeat General Meeting shall be convened not earlier than in
14 calendar days, and not later than 21 calendar days following the failed General Meeting. The shareholders shall be
informed of the convening of the repeat General Meeting in the same manner as the failed General Meseting, but not later
than 14 calendar days prior to the repeat General Meeting,

6.2.2. \oting at the General Meeting

Each ordinary share of the Company confers one vote at the General Meeting. Participation and voting in the General
Meeting or the repeat General Meeting shall be reserved only for those who are shareholders on the record date, Ze. those
who are shareholders at the end of the fifth business day prior to the General Meeting or prior to the repeat General
Meeting.

Those authorised by the shareholders and holding a power of attorney issued by means of electronic communication ko
an individual or a company to participate and vote on his/her behalf at the General Meeting may attend and vote at the
General Meeting. Persons with whom an agreement on assignment of voting rights has been concluded may attend and
vote at the General Meeting if a shareholder informs the CEO of the Company of any transfer of voting rights by providing
copies of the respective agreement and (or) authorization. Under the Aricles of Assodation such document must be
provided to the Company within 7 calendar days of the signing of the respective document.

Anyone attending the General Meeting and entitled to vote must present a document which is a proof of his/her identity.
Anyone who is not a shareholder must additionally present a document proving his/her right to vote at the General Meeting.

In addition, shareholders may vote in advance of the General Meeting by filling in written general voting ballots.
Shareholders that have voted in advance shall be deemed as participating in the General Meeting and their votes will be
counted when establishing the quorum and voting results. If the shareholder so requests, the Company, no later than 10
days before the General Meeting, must dispatch a general ballot paper by registered mail or present this against signature,
free of charge, The general ballot paper must also be available on the Company's website (www.interran.It) no later than
21 days before the General Meeting.

The General Meeting shall be deemed to have taken place and will be able to adopt decisions if the shareholders holding
more than half of all votes of the Company participate in the General Meeting. If the required quorum is not present, the
General Meeting shall be deemed to have failed to take place and a repeat General Meeting shall be convened. A repeat
General Meeting shall be held based on the agenda of the failed General Meeting and shall not be subject to quorum
requirements, General voting ballots of a failed General Meeting will be valid in a repeat General Meeting.

All shareholders patticipating in the General Meeting have the right to vote and ask questions during the General Meeting.
The right to participate and to speak at the General Meeting shall also be held by the members of the Supervisory Board,
Management Board, CEQ, the General Meeting inspector and the auditor that prepared the conclusion and the repart.

The Company must record the voting results for each decision adopted at the General Meeting. The shareholders at the
General Meeting shall elect the General Meeting inspector who determines the total number of votes carried by the shares
issued by the Company on the day of the General Meeting, the number of valid and invalid general ballot papers filled-in
and submitted in advance, the number of valid and invalid proxies submitted, the number of submitted agreements on the
disposal of voting rights, the number of voting shares represented at the General Meeting (In person, through proxies,
through persons under agreements on the disposal of voting rights, under the general ballot papers filled-in in advance,
under other documents entitling to vote), whether the General Meeting has a quorum, and the results of voting at the
General Meeting.

Mot later than within 7 days following the General Meeting, the Company must post the voting results of the General
Mesting on its website. Shareholders or their representatives that have participated in the General Meeting may become
familiar with the meeting minutes, and within 3 calendar days after becoming familiar (but not later than within 10 calendar
days of the General Mecting), may submit their commoents and opinions in writing.
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6.2.3. Electing members of the Supervisory Board

The members of the Supervisory Board are elected by the General Meeting. Under the Lithuanian law candidates for 2
supervisory board may be proposed by the Management Board and a shareholder(s) holding shares representing at least
5% of votes. When electing Supervisory Board members, each sharcholder has a number of vates equal to the number of
votes cafrled by the shares of the Company hefshe owns, multiplied by the number of members of the Supervisory Board
being elected. A shareholder can distribute votes at hisfher own discretion, granting them to one or several candidates.
The candidate who receives the highest number of votes prevails. The chairman of the Supervisory Board is elected by
the members of the Supervisory Board. If the number of candidates who received an equal number of votes exceeds the
number of vacancies on the Supervisory Board, a repeat vate shall be held in which each sharcholder may vote only for
one of the candidates who received the equal number of votes.

The General M=eting may remove the entire Supervisory Board or its individual members befare the expiry of their term
of office. Such decision requires a simple majority of votes. IF an individual member is removed, resigns or discontinues
the performance of his/her duties for other reasons, and the shareholders whose shares carry at least 1/10 of all votes
object to the election of individual members of the Supervisory Board, then the entire Supervisory Board shall lose its
powers and shall be subject to election. Where individual members of the Supervisory Board are elected, they shall be
elected only until the expiry of the term of office of the current Supervisory Baard,

Under the shareholders’ agreement entered by the principal shareholder of the Company (the Shareholders’ Agresment),
at all times during the validity of the Shareholders’ Agreement, the principal shareholders will vote their shares in order to
elect five candidates nominated by the principal shareholders. In addition, the principal shareholders will vote their shares
to appoint two independent members proposed by the principal shareholder, since under Lithuanian law, candidates for a
Supenvisory Board may be proposed by the Management Board and any shareholder(s) holding shares representing at
least 5% of votes.

6.2.4. Approval of annual accounts

Annual financial statements and an annual report are prepared by the CEQ, assessed by the Management Board and
commented on by the Supervisory Board. The Annual General Meeting receives annual financial statements and the annual
report, together with comments and proposals of the Supervisory Board, and adopts a decision to approve the audited
annual financial statements. The same procedure, mudalis mutandis, applies to the approval of interim accounts of the
Company if the General Meeting makes a decision to distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company for a period
shorter than the financial year.

The annual financial statements, auditor's report, annual report and other information required under Lithuanian law must
be made available to shareholders for review from the date of the notice an convening the Annual Genaral Meeting.

6.2.5. Distribution of profit

Pursuant to the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania, the Company may distribute its profit or assets to
sharehalders only (i) by paying dividend; (i) in case of liquidation of the Company; or (i) in casc of reduction of the share
capital of the Company.

Decision to distribute profits of the Company, as well as to establish, use, decrease and/ar cancel the reserves, is adopted
in the General Meeting by the qualified 3& majority of votes of sharehalders participating in the General Meeting.

The General Meeting may adopt a decision to declare annual and interim dividends by the qualified 3 majority of votes
of sharcholders participating at the General Meeting. The Company is allowed to pay dividends (i} only to the extent that
the Company’s equity exceeds the aggregate nominal value of all of the Company’s shares plus the amount of any reserves
{mandatory reserve, the revaluation reserve and the reserve for acquisition of own shares) that the Company is required
to, or is allowed to, maintain pursuant to the Articles of Association or the provisions of applicable laws; (i) only if the
Company has no outstanding non-performed obligations with due terms before the adoption of the decision to pay cut
dividends, and (jii) only if the Company during the respective financial year or interim financial period has made profit.
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Further, payment of interim dividends may be initiated by the proposal of shareholders, holding at least 1/3 of all votes of
the Company. In addition to the above mentioned conditions, interim dividends are allowed to be paid only if (i) financial
statements for the respective period shorter than the financial year are audited and approved by the General Mesting; (i)
profit was generated during the respective period that is shorter than the financial year; (i) the amount of the paid-out
interim dividends do not exceed the following: a) profit generated during the respective period that is shorter than the
financial year, plus undistributed profit (accumulated during all earfier years) present at the end of the previous financial
year, minus part of the profit generated during the respective period that is shorter than the financial year that must be
aliocated to reserves under the Articles of Association or the Law on Companies (/e if the mandatory reserve is below
1/10 of the registered share capital, deductions must be made to it of not less than 1/20 of the net profit of the respective
financial year); (iv) the Company has no outstanding obligations which became due before adoption of the decision to pay
out interim dividends and after the interim dividends are paid, the Company will remain able to meet its obligations for
the current financial year.,

Dividends are paid to persons who, at the end of the rights record date (i.c. the tenth business day following the day the
decision to distribute dividends was adopted by the Genaral Meeting), were shareholders of the Company or were otherwise
entitled to receive dividends. Each sharsholder is entitled to dividends gro rata to the number of shares held by such
shareholder. The Company must pay dividends within one month of the date of resolution adopted by the General Meeting.

6.2.6. Issuance of shares

The Company may issue new shares pursuant to a resolution of the General Meeting adopted by qualified 34 majority of
votes of shareholders participating at the General Meeting; no special quorum is required. A qualified 3% majority of votes
of shareholders participating at the General Meecting is also required to issue convertible bonds. The dedision of the General
Meeting to issue new shares shall be deemed void in case of failure to submit the amended Articles of Association to the
Register of Legal Entities of the Republic of Lithuania within six months of the day on which the General Meeting adopted
the decislon. If this deadline Is not met, the contributions for the subscribed shares must immediately be returned, without
any deductions at the written request of the subscriber.

The Company's share capital may be increased from the Company’s own funds by issuing new shares. In such case the
shareholders are entitied to receive new additional shares for no consideration in proportion to the nominal value of the
shares owned by them on the rights record day (£e. the tenth business day following the day of the decision of the General
Meeting to increase the Company's share capital).

A gualified 34 majority of votes of shareholders participating at the General Meeting is also required to establish the class,
number, nominal value, minimal issue price of shares in the Company, as well as to convert the Company’s shares of one
class into another class and related procedures.

6.2.7. Amendment of the Articles of Association

The General Meeting can resolve to amend the Articles of Association by a qualified % majority of votes of sharsholders
participating at the General Mesting. The amended Articles of Association shall come into force on the day of the
registration of the Articles of Association with the Register of Legal Entities of the Republic of Lithuania. Once the
amendments to the Articles of Association are entered In the companies register, the Company publishes a relevant current
report.

6.2.8. The rights of the shareholders and procedures of their execution

In addition to the rights described above, the shareholders of the Company also enjoy other rights established by the
Lithuanian Company Law or other legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania.
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6.2.9. Right to transfer the shares

According to Lithuanian law, the Company is prohibited from introducing any additional restrictions of the shareholders
right to dispose of fully paid shares to another person. There are no restrictions on transfer of the shares, other than those
described in applicable laws or agreed between the sharcholders of the Company,

6.2.10. Pre-emptive right

Each shareholder holding the shares at the end of the rights record date (£e the tenth business day following the day of

the decision of the General Meeting to increase the Company’s share capital) has & pre-emptive right with respect to all
new share issuances or convertible bonds, in proportion to the number of shares hald by such shareholder.

Pre-emptive rights may be withdrawn by a decision of the General Meeting taken by a gualificd 34 majority of votes of
shareholders participating at the General Meeting. The right of pre-emption to acquire new shares being issued by the
Company or the convertible bonds may only be withdrawn for all sharcholders of the Compary. A written proposal to
withdraw the pre-emptive right must be given by the Management Board, indicating reasons and causes for such
withdrawal, as well as persons wha would be offered to acquire the newly issued securities. The General Meeting, taking
a decision on withdrawal of the pre-emptive right, must justify the necessity to withdraw such right and specify the person
or persons who are given the right to subscribe to newly issued securities or convertible bonds, save for cases when the
pre-emptive right is withdrawn because of the intention to make a public offering of securities of the Company under the
procedure set by the Lithuanian Law on Securities,

6.2.11. Right to receive Information

At the written request of any shareholder, the Company shall, no later than within 7 days from the day of receipt of such
request, submit to the shareholder to become familiar with and (or) present copies of the following documents: the Articles
of Association of the Company, annual and interim financial statements, annual and interim reports of the Company, audit
statements and reports, minutes of the General Meeting and other documents containing decisions of the General Mesting,
lists of the shareholders, other documents of the Company which must be public by law of the Republic of Lithuania as
long as they do not contain any commerdial (industrial) secret or confidential information of the Company. Upon submission
to the Company of a written undertaking in the form established by the Company not ta disclose the commercial {industrial)
secret and confidential information, a shareholder or group of sharehiolders holding or possessing more than half of all the
shares shall have the right to become familiar with all documents of tho Company. The Company has the right to refuse
to provide to the shareholder present copies of the documents if it is unable to determine the identity of the shareholder.
Refusal to provide to the shareholder with present documents shall be executed by the Company in writing at the
shareholder’s request. Disputes regarding the right of the sharehalder to information shall be settled in court.

The Company’s documents and other information or copies thereof shall be presented to the sharehalders at the registered
office of the Company. The Company’s documents, their copies and other information shall be presented to the
sharehoiders, free of charge.

6.2.12. Inquiry right

One or more shareholders, individually or jointly representing at least 1/10 of the share capital of the Company, may assert
their inquiry right. This means that they may appeal to the court in writing to appoint one or more axperts to conduct an

inquiry of the activity and affairs of the Company, /e whether the Company or the Company’s corporate bodies or their
members acted in the proper manner.

In the event of improper performance of the activity, the following sanctions may be imposed by the court after evaluating
the findings reported by the appointed experts: (i) revocation of the resolutions taken by the corporate bodies: (i
temporary suspension of the powers of the members of the corporate bodies or exclusion of a person from the corporate
body; (i) appointment of provisional members of corporate bodies; (iv) authorisation of non-implementation of certain
provisions of incorporation documents; (v) obligation to make amendments to certain provisions of Incorporation
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documents; (vi) transferral to another person of the member's right of the corporate body to vaote; (vii) obligation of the
Company to take or not take certain actions; and (viii) liquidation of the Company and appointment of a liguidator.

6.3.Personal composition and procedures of the Company’s Management and Supervisory
Boards and its commitiees

Rules of conduct of the Supervisory Board, its committees and the Management Board are regulated in the Articles of
Association of the Company and the Regulations of work of the Supervisory Board, its committees and the Supervisory
Board, respectively.

6.3.1. Management Board

The Company’s Management Board consists of five board members, including the chairman of the Management Board.
Under Lithuanian law, the Management Board may act if at least 2/3 of the number of members established in the Articles
of Associalion are appointed and participate in the Management Board activities. Under the Articles of Association, the
members are appointed for a term of four years, Each member may be reappointed. The Supervisory Board elects the
Board members by a majority of votes of the members who attended the Supervisory Board's meeting and those who
voted In advance, The chalrman of the Management Board is elected by the Management Board. The Supervisory Board
may recall the entire Management Board or its individual members before the expiry of the term of their office if at least
2/3 of the Supervisory Board members present at the meeting vote for such a decision. The Management Board s
responsible for the strategic direction of the Company under the supervision of the Supervisory Board. Under the Articles
of Assaciation, all resolutions of the Management Board must, depending on the type of decision, be adopted cither by a
simple majority of the votes cast, or unanimaously.

The following decisions must be adopted unanimously (defined as all members of the Management Board vote for the
adaption of the decision): {i} to approve and amend the by-laws of the Management Board; (i} election and removal of
the CEQ, establishment of his/her salary and other employment conditions, to provide him/her incentives and impose
penalties; approval of the by-laws of the CEQ; (iil) approval of the business strategy of the Company; (iv) approval of the
management structure and positions of the Company; (v) becoming an incorporator or member of other legal entities and
acquisition of shares or part of capital in other legal entities; (vi) establishing branches and representative offices of the
Company, appraval of their regulations and namination of thelr managers; (vii} investing, transferring of or leasing the
tangible long-term assets, the book value of which exceeds 1/20 of the authorised share capital of the Company {calculated
individually for each type of transaction); (viii) pledging or mortgaging the tangible long-term assets, the book value of
which exceeds 1/20 of the authorised share capital of the Company (calculated for the total amount of transactions); (ix)
granting surety or guarantee for the discharge of obligations of third persons, the amount of which excesds 1/20 of the
authorised share capital of the Company; (x) acquiring tangible long-term assets, the price of which exceeds 1/20 of the
authorised share capital of the Company; («i} approval, amendment or termination of the transactions between the
Company and persons related to shareholders {except for transactions regarding the sale ar purchase of electricity and/or
transactions that are included in the annual investment program or budget approved by the Management Board); (xii)
approval or amendment of the annual budget of the Company; (xiii) adopting decisions on issuance of debentures; (xiv)
approval of transactions which are outside the scope of an annual investment program approved by the Management
Board and investments exceeding EUR 1.5 million; (xv) any decisions related to the exercising of the shareholder's rights
or obligations in any controlied legal entity of the Company, including (without limitation) voting in the general meetings
of shareholders, nomination of the candidates to the governing bodies ete.; (xvi) making transactions or actions for sale
or other transfer of the shares, capital or any other form of the membership Interest (including any rights cartied theraby)
held by the Company in any legal entity; (xvil) decislon of any other issue attributed to the competence of the Management
Board by the laws, by the decisions of the General Meeting and by the Articles of Association; (xviil) approval of the annual
investment program of the Company; and (xix) approval of lransactions whereby loans, credits or similar financial
arrangements to be obtained by the Company or whereby loans, credits or similar financial arrangements to be extended
by the Company.

The term of office of the Management Board shall commence after the closing of the Meeting of the Supervisory Board at
which it was elected, The Management Board shall perform its functions for a term of four years or until election and
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tommencement of functioning of a new Management Board, but no longert than until the annual General Meeting to be
held in the year at the end of the term of office of the Management Board. As at the date of the Report, the Management
Board is composed of five members.

6.3.2. Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board consists of seven members, including the chairman. Under Lithuanian law, the Supervisory Board
may act if at least half of the number of members established in the Articles of Assodation are appainted and participate
in Supervisory Board activities. The members of the Supervisory Board are elected by the General Meeting. The General
Meeting may also remove the entire Supervisory Board or its individual members before the expiry of their term of office,

The Supervisory Board is responsible for supervising the activities of the Management Board and the CEQ. The Supervisory
Board may adopt decisians, and its meetings are considered to have been validly held only if mare than half of its members
are present, or represented during such a meeting. The members of the Supervisory Board who have voted in advance
shall also be considered to have attended the meeting. Each member of the Supervisory Board is entitled to one vote.

Under the Articles of Association, the members of the Supervisory Board are elected for a term of four years by the General
Meeting. The Supervisory Board commences its activities after the closing of the General Meeting which elected the
Supervisory Board and shall perform its functions for a period of four years or until a new Supervisory Board s elected,
but not for longer than the date of the annual General Meeting to be held during the final year of the term of office of the
Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board shall have all powers and rights provided for by the laws and these Articles of Association, including:
(1) to approval and amendment of by-laws of Supervisory Board; (i) election of mambers of the Management Board and
removal from the office; (iil) supervision of activities of the Management Board and CED: (iv) submission of comments
and proposals to the General Meeting on the Company's operating strategy, annual financial statements, draft of profit
(loss) appropriation and the annual report of the Company, as well as the activities of the Management Board and CEO;
(v} submission of comments and proposals to the General Meeting on draft decision of allocation of dividends far any
period shorter than the financial year, and for that purpose composed interim financial statements and annual report; {vi)
submission of proposals to the Management Board and CEO to revoke any decisions which are in conflict with the laws,
other legal acts, the Articles of Association or decisions of the General Meeting; (vil) request the Management Board and
the CEO to submit documents refated to the activity of Company; (viii) right to make proposals for the recrganization
terms; (ix) right to initiate the conveyance of the General Meeting; (x) right to supplement the agenda of the General
Meeting; and (xi) a member of Supervisory Board has the right attend and speak at the General Meeting.

A decision to remove a member of the Management Board from office may be taken if at least 2/3 of the Supervisory
Board members present at the meeting, including any who have voted in advance, vote for it.

As at the date of this report, the Supervisory Board is composed of six members. The Company expects that additional
member of the Supervisory Board will be elected during the Annual General Meeting. It is expected that additional member
of the Supervisory Board shall meet criteria of being independent.

6.3.3. Commitiess

In order to properly implement its supervisory function, the Supervisory Board has the right to form its committees, The
audit committee is formed from among the members of the Supervisory Board, The audit committee shall consist of three
members, of the Supervisory Board As of 6% June 2017 Mr Victor Kolotievskiy, Mr Vasily Kulikov and Mr Danielis Kiidmanas
were elected as members of audit committee of the Company. Mr. Danielis Klicmanas is the Chairman of the committee.

The Audit committee’s term of office shall be the same as the Supervisory Board. Any decisions made by the audit
committee shall be only of an advisory nature to the Supervisory Board. The main tasks of the Audit committee shall
include, among others, the monitoring of the Company’s financial information integrity, the external auditor's independence
and objoctivity, as well as the offectiveness of the extornal audit process, the review of internal control and Fsk
management systems.
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6.3.4. Description of the basic features of the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems related to the process of preparing
financial statements

The Company's system of internal control and risk management in the process of drawing up financial statements is
implemented through:

- the audit of the annual financial statements of the Company and the Group;

- verification whether a uniform accounting policy is applied by the Company’s Group companies as regards the recognition,
measurement and disclosures in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by EU (IFRS);

- following accounting standards and monitoring compliance with them.

The Company maintains its financial statements in accordance with the IFRS as adopted by the European Union and sct
by International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"), and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committea (“"IFRIC"), and as applicable in the respedtive years,

The Company has certain procedures to authorise the financial statements under which the periodical annual reports arc
submitted to the Management Board for an approval and after the approval disclosed in public. Subsequently, the financial
statements are forwarded to the Supervisory Board for their opinion. The Annual General Meeting receives annual financial
statements and the annual report, together with comments and proposals of the Supervisory Board, and adopts a decision
to approve the audited annual financial statements. Before the publication, the financial statements are treated as
confidential information of the Company and provided solely to persons invelved in the preparation, verification and
approval process which are bind under the confidentiality undertakings.

6.3.5. Publicly announced information

During the period from the start of 2019 to 31¥ December 2019 Company publicly announced and broadecasted through
Warsaw Stock Exchange information system and on own webpage the following Information:

Category of

Tikle announcement Language Date
Publication date of the results for the 4th quarter of
2018 and the Annual Information for 2018 of AB INTER
RAD Lietuva Investor news EN, LT 20-Feb-2019
Announcement of the results for the 4th quarter of 2018
and the Annual Information for 2018 of AB INTER RAD
Lietuva Annual information EM, LT 22-Feb-2019
Statement on corporate governance Investor news EN, LT 06-Mar-2019

AR INTER RAD Lietuva decisions of the Management Notification on material
Board event EN, LT 27-Mar-2019

AB INTER RAO Lietuva dedsions of the Supervisory MNotification on material

Board event EN, EF 01-Apr-2019
Notice on convocation of the Annual General Meeting of  Motification on material
Shareholders event EN, LT 05-Apr-2019
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AB INTER RAO Lietuva “"announces about the Notification on material
Management Board decision to approve the extension  event

: of the overdraft agreement with OF Corporate Bank plc EN, LT 11-Apr-2019
;e Lithuania Branch
i
;. The decisions adopted by the Annual General Meeting  Notification on material
g af Sharcholders of AB INTER RAD Lictuva event EN, LT 26-Apr-2019
i Notification on material

Naotice on the procedure for the payment of dividends  event EM, LT 07-May-2019

Publication date of the results for the 1st guarter of

2019 of AR INTER. RAD Lietuva Investor news EN, LT 08-May-2019
L Announcement of the results for the 1st quarter of the

year 2019 of AB INTER RAD Lietuva Interim information EN, LT 10-May-2019
. Publication date of the Unaudited Consolidated Interim
o financial statements and the Unaudited Consolidated
. Interim Report of AB INTER RAQ Lietuva for the &-
’ maonth peried ended 30 June 2019 Investor news EN, LT 28-Aug-2019
i Announcement of the Unaudited Consolidated Interim

Financial Statements and the Unaudited Consolidated

Interim Repot of AB INTER RAQ LUetuva for the 6

Month Period Ended 30 June 2019 Interim information EN, LT 30-Aug-2019

" Publication date of the results far the 3rd quart-éf of

2019 Investor news EN, LT 12-Mov-2019

Announcement of the results for the 3rd quarter of the

year 2019 of AB INTER RAO Lictuva Interim information EN, LT 14-Noy-2019

|
Contents  of above  mentioned  announcements can  be  obtained on  Company's  webpage
httpsifinterrao.\Ven/reporisicurrant-reports/2019/,
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VII. Confirmation of Responsible Persons

Following the Article No. 22 of the Law on Securities of the Republiic of Lithuania and Rules on Preparation and Submission
of Periodic and Additional Information of the Lithuanian Securities Commission, T, Giedrius BalCilinas, General Director of
AB INTER RAQ Lictuva hereby confirm that, to the best of my knowledge, AB INTER RAO Listuva Financial Statements as
of and for the year ended 31 December 2019 as set out on above are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilitics, financial
position and prafit or loss and cash flows of the Company and the Group. The consolidated Annual Report of the Company
includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and the Group
In relation to the description of the main risks and contingencies faced thereby.

Giedrius Balfilnas I

General Director ' ,[.’ ".r_-‘ [
i
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